
      
PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:

City-Council-Live-StreamCity-Council-Live-Stream

CORTEZ CITY COUNCILCORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETINGREGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2024TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2024
7:30 P.M.7:30 P.M.

      

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  ROLL CALL,  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.   

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA

The listing under "Consent Agenda" is a group of items to be acted on with a single motion and vote.
This agenda is designed to expedite the handling of limited routine matters by City Council. Either the
public or a Councilmember may request that an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at that
time, prior to Council's vote. The Mayor will ask if a citizen or Councilmember wishes to have any
specific item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.

  

 

a. Approval of the Council Special Meeting/Worksession and Agenda Minutes of June 25, 2024.
 

b. Approval of the Expenditure List for July 9, 2024
 

c. Approval of a renewal application for a Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine Liquor License for Western
Refining Retail, Inc., DBA Speedway #9499, located at 921 East Main Street, Cortez.

 

d. Approval of a renewal application for a Retail Liquor Store Liquor License for Seventeem Eighteen
Cortez, Inc., DBA Liquid Assets, located at 718 East Main Street, Cortez.

 

e. Approval of a renewal application for a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for La Casita de Cortez,
LLC., DBA La Casita de Cortez, located at 332 East Main Street, Cortez.

 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to anThere is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to an
overall time limit of 30 minutes.overall time limit of 30 minutes.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

4. PRESENTATIONS   

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 

a. Resolution No. 10, Series 2024Resolution No. 10, Series 2024
 

 Resolution No. 10, Series 2024, a resolution approving a site development plan for an addition to an
existing commercial building located at 1240 Industrial Road, Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I)
Zoning District.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall
 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 

http://www.cityofcortez.com/497 /City-Council-Live-Stream


      
7. NEW BUSINESS   

 

a. Resolution No. 12, Series 2024Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
 

 Resolution No. 12, Series 2024, resolution approving the Minor Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat of
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision located at 1082 at 1060 N. Mildred
Street, Cortez, Colorado, submitted by Walter C. Reed.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall
 

b. Resolution No. 13, Series 2024Resolution No. 13, Series 2024
 

 Resolution No.13, Series 2024, a resolution approving the 1st Amended Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7
F.R. Coffin's Addition to the Town of Cortez, located at 450 E. Main St, Cortez, Colorado, submitted by
John & Amador Garcia, with the conditions stated in the Resolution.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Contract City Planner Nancy Dosdall
 

c. CDOT Aeronautics Discretionary Grant Award Resolution for matches of Parking Lot andCDOT Aeronautics Discretionary Grant Award Resolution for matches of Parking Lot and
Runway Rehabilitation ProjectsRunway Rehabilitation Projects
 

 Council will consider approving the CDOT Aeronautics Grant Award Resolution for Airport
Improvement Projects and authorize the Mayor to sign the Resolution. 

 

Presenter: Presenter: Jeremy Patton, Airport Director
 

d. Contract for Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Roadway Funding and CityContract for Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Roadway Funding and City
Transportation EngineeringTransportation Engineering
 

 Council will consider awarding a contract for professional engineering services for CDOT Roadway
Funding and City Transportation Engineering to Jones & DeMille Engineering, Inc., at its proposal price
of $139,868.00.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Brian K. Peckins, Director of Public Works
 

e. 2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project Bid Award2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project Bid Award
 

 Council will consider awarding the contract for the 2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project to Specialty
Applicators LLC at its bid price of $300,855.00.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Brian K. Peckins, Director of Public Works
 

f. Cortez Police Department MDT (Mobile Data Terminal) ProjectCortez Police Department MDT (Mobile Data Terminal) Project
 

 Council will consider approval of the funds to purchase and install 34 MDTs, eForce Silent Dispatch
software for each user, and AT&T data cards of each user; and be reimbursed by the Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) 2022-DJ-23-01-23-1 / Cortez MDT Project grant
award.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Vern Knuckles, Chief of Police
 



      
g. Authorization to accept the proposal of Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. forAuthorization to accept the proposal of Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. for

a Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter and Geer Natural Areasa Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas
 

 Review proposal from Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. and authorize the City to enter
into a contract for the completion of a Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter & Geer Natural
Areas.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Helen West, C&ED Specialist
 

h. Resolution No. 14, Series 2024Resolution No. 14, Series 2024
 

 Resolution No. 14, Series 2024, a resolution Waiving the Right of the City of Cortez, Colorado to First
Refusal and First Offer in Connection with the Sale of Affordable Housing.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Drew Sanders, City Manager
 

8. DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES   

 

9. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT   

 

10. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT   

 

11. CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a. Mayor's Report on Workshop   

 

b. Other Board Reports   

 

12. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Executive Session as needed.   

 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

14. ADJOURNMENT   

 



      
 
PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION 11, SERIES 2022, PUBLIC COMMENT:
--Individuals may comment regarding items on the Council agenda or any other topic they wish to address the
City Council about, including items discussed in a previous Council Workshop.    Those wishing to comment
must register by completing an "Intent to Speak" card (located outside of the Council chambers).  Completed
cards will be collected at the start of the meeting and delivered to the Mayor, who will call each speaker to the
podium at the appropriate time.  Comments specific to agenda items scheduled for public hearings should be
reserved and delivered during the public hearing session.
--Courtesy, civility, and respect for others is expected.  All comments should be addressed directly to the Council.
Commenters who are called upon by the Mayor to speak are the only persons allowed to speak during the allotted
time.  Comments, or other distractions from the audience intended for commenters or others are not permitted. 
The Mayor, as the chairperson for the meeting, retains the discretion to deviate from the formats described below.
--There are two general opportunities for citizens to address the Council:
For the first opportunity (which will occur toward the start of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, although public comments will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes so City business may
proceed.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
other commenters.
For the second opportunity (which will occur toward the end of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, and no overall time limit.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and
may not cede time to other commenters.
--Other Opportunities to Participate
Citizens may also participate via email if addressed to councilcomments@cortezco.gov. Comments received by
3:00pm the day of a Council meeting will be delivered to Council the same day and entered into the meeting
minutes.  Citizens may also send letters to the Council by addressing them to "City Council" 123 Roger Smith
Ave., Cortez, CO 81321.  In-person deliveries are also accepted.

MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:
--For a conference with the City attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b);
--For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing
strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e);
--To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a)
--For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific fie
employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session: any member of this body or any elected
official: the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official: or personnel policies
that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees
--For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or state law, or regulation:
____ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c)
--For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)
(d)
--For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g)

AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DETAILS ARE PROVIDED:
(a brief description must be included following the statute citation regarding why the executive session is being
held) 
 

 

mailto:councilcomments@cortezco.gov


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

LINDA SMITH, CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

July 2, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of the Council Special Meeting/Worksession and Agenda Minutes of June 25,Approval of the Council Special Meeting/Worksession and Agenda Minutes of June 25,
2024.2024.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Worksession Minutes for June 25, 2024
Agenda Minutes for June 25, 2024



CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR WORKSHOP/SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2024
5:15 p.m.

1.   The Regular Worksession/Special Meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers
at 5:15 p.m.  The following Councilmembers were present: Mayor Rachel Medina, Mayor Pro-
tem Lydia DeHaven, Robert Dobry, Bill Lewis, Matthew Keefauver, April Randle, and Dennis
Spruell.  Planning and Zoning Commission present included Chairman Robert Rime and Bob
Bright.  Staff present included:  Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright, Community
and Economic Development Director Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Finance Kelly Koskie,
Chief of Police Vernon Knuckles, City Manager Executive Assistant Wendy Mimiaga, Deputy
City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Clerk Linda Smith, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City
Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were three citizens in the audience.

2.  Interviews were held for various City Boards and Commissions openings as follows:
       *Library Advisory Board

                                  Heidi Bruger
              *Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Advisory Board
                                  Kenneth Quigley

      Alan Klein
      Julia Buff

Appointments will be made during the Regular City Council meeting.

3.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council members reviewed the draft Land
Use Code Chapters 1 and 3 (Module 1).  Logan Simpson representatives Jen Garner and
McKayla Dunfey reviewed the work they have been doing on the draft of the Land Use Code.
Module 1 was recapped and it was noted that it is out for public input.  Highlights that have been
changed in the draft that were recommended at the last worksession meeting were reviewed and
included non-conformities.  Zone Districts were reviewed as well as dimensions and new and
updated uses.  Modernized language was updated for the housing zones and compatibility with
business zones was reviewed.  Discussion was held on parking requirements and landscaping
suggestions.  The next steps for the draft Land Use Code were reviewed and the next review will
include Module 2.  Open houses will be held on Wednesday, June 26, 2024, at the Chamber of
Commerce and City Hall on the current draft  language should the public wish to attend.

The regular workshop was adjourned at 7:25 p.m.



CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2024

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 7:30 p.m., with the Pledge of
Allegiance.  Roll Call was taken and the following Councilmembers were present: Mayor Rachel
Medina, Mayor Pro-tem Lydia DeHaven, Robert Dobry, Matthew Keefauver, Bill Lewis, April
Randle and Dennis Spruell.  Staff present included:  Chief of Police Vernon Knuckles, Finance
Director Kelly Koskie, Airport Director Jeremy Patton, Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton
Wright, Community and Economic Development Director Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Public
Works Brian Peckins, Court Clerk/Administrator Carla Odell, IT Technician Aaron Holleman, City
Clerk Linda Smith, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City
Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were six people present in the audience.

Councilmember Lewis moved that the agenda of June 25, 2024 be approved.  Councilmember
Dobry seconded the motion and the vote was as follows:

         DeHaven         Dobry         Keefauver          Lewis        Medina        Randle         Spruell
             Yes                 Yes                 Yes                  Yes              Yes             Yes               Yes

2.    The Consent Agenda items acted upon by Council were as follows:

a. Approval of the Special Meeting/Worksession Council Agenda Minutes for June 11, 2024.

b.  Approval of the Expenditure List for June 25, 2024.

c. Approval of a renewal application for a Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine Liquor License for
Maverick Inc., DBA Maverick #497, located at 455 State Street, Cortez.

d.  Approval of a renewal application for Kashmien LLC, DBA Lotsa Pasta & Thatza Pizza, located
at 439 East Main Street, Cortez.

e.  Approval of a renewal application for a Retail Liquor Store License for Marjana Lloyd, DBA
The Cellar, located at 2410 Fairway Drive, Suite B, Cortez.

Councilmember Dobry moved that the Consent Agenda be approved as presented.  Mayor Pro-tem
DeHaven seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows:

    DeHaven         Dobry         Keefauver         Lewis         Medina        Randle         Spruell
             Yes                 Yes                Yes                  Yes              Yes             Yes               Yes

3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

a.  Mindy Nelson welcomed new Councilmembers and spoke about the violation of the law
regarding the judicial hearing on the logging business.  She also spoke about CORA fees and



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 2

commented that the normal family will not be able to pay for requests due to the proposed fee
increase.  She spoke about missed steps that have happened with the LePlew project and her
concern with the handling of affordable housing within the community.  She stated that Council
should work for the people, not against the people.

b.  Charles Jeter, resident of California with interest in the area, spoke about a handout which was
given to Council regarding an outline on his investigation written on October 4 as a historical
document; however, the handout does not include conclusions of fact, rather includes the summary
of leads that he had at that time.  He spoke about CORA requests which he has submitted to the
City and noted that the process has been lengthy and adversarial.  He stated that some of his
requests show that staff and Council may have exceeded their authority and that he is following the
leads through his many CORA requests.

4.    PRESENTATIONS

a. Colorado House Bill 24-1175, Local Government’s Rights to Property for Affordable Housing.
City Manager Sanders reviewed Colorado HB 24-1175 noting that the local government has the
right of first refusal or offer to purchase qualifying multi-family property to provide long-term
affordable housing or mixed-income development.  Also, to purchase existing affordable multi-
family rental properties consisting of not less than five units (excluding mobile home parks) with
the commitment to use the property as long-term affordable housing.  Information was shared on
Existing Affordable Housing (EAH) and the requirement that the seller of an EAH must give
notice.  The local government has 14 days to preserve right of first refusal and an additional 30 days
to make an offer to purchase.  Also, the local government must agree to close on the property within
60 days of acceptance to purchase and if seller rejects an offer by local government it must provide
a written explanation and invite local government to make a subsequent offer within 14 days.  City
Manager Sanders reviewed other application rules with HB 24-1175 and stated that the local
government may opt out of the Bill if Council chooses.  Councilmember Dobry stated that he would
like for the City to opt out of the Bill as he has concerns about staff time, the City’s ability to meet
the deadlines, and concerns for private property rights as he feels this Bill is a taking of property
rights.  City Attorney Coleman reviewed the difference between a right of first refusal/right of first
offer and the requirements that would be placed on a property through a recorded deed or other
document created as a multi-family unit.  Discussion was held on the Bill and Council agreed to
move forward directing staff to prepare the correct documents to opt out of HB 24-1175.

5.    PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None.

6.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None

7.     NEW BUSINESS

a. Award a Lease Bid for Two Greens Mowers for the Conquistador Golf Course.  Director of Parks
and Recreation Wright reviewed the background on the recent purchase of two greens mowers for
the Golf Course noting that the interest rate offered through John Deere Financial was at 6.9%.  He
stated that Director of Finance Koskie gained lease bids from four financing vendors with all the
vendors providing a $1 buyout and a five-year term.  Commerce Bank offered to the lowest interest



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 3

rate and payment, 5.2% with an annual payment of $24,805.18 which will save approximately
$4,314.25 over the lease term from the initial offer from John Deere.  It was noted that the
equipment was delivered to the Golf Course earlier than expected and therefore the process has
been expedited to get the finances in line.  Council thanked staff for being stewards of the City’s tax
money and finding a better offer.

Councilmember Lewis moved that Council rescind the authorization to sign a five-year lease with
John Deere Financial, award the Financing-lease for the two Greens Mowers for the Conquistador
Golf Course to Commerce Bank at an interest rate of 5.2% and an annual payment of approximately
$24,805.18, and authorize the City Manager to negotiate lease terms and sign a lease agreement.
Councilmember Spruell seconded the motion and the vote was as follows:

DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver          Lewis          Medina        Randle         Spruell
         Yes                 Yes                   Yes                  Yes                 Yes             Yes               Yes

b.  Resolution No. 11, Series 2024.  City Clerk Smith stated that Resolution No. 11, Series 2024,
amends the 2024 Fee Schedule for the City of Cortez.  One of the changes will be to the Public
Records Standard Fees and Charges, which contains a fee for the Research, Retrieval, and Data
Manipulation of public records (CORA Fee).  The CORA Fee was set at $33.58 per hour by the
Colorado Legislature pursuant to CRS 24-72-205(6)(b) in 2019.  The Legislative Council has
determined that the new maximum CORA Fee that state and local governments in Colorado may
charge is $41.37 per hour (maximum fee) effective July 1, 2024.  Also, the 2024 Fee Schedule
contains a section entitled Public Works, which contains a fee for a Right of Way Construction
Permit which needs to be amended by the addition of Asphalt Patch Fees.  Two subcategories of
fees under the Right of Way Construction Permit shall be added 1) Surface Roadway Replacement
Cold Patch shall be $280.00/sq. yd. and 2) Surface Roadway Hot Patch shall be $250.00/sq. yd.
The remaining 2024 Fee Schedule will remain unchanged.  Staff recommends approval of
Resolution No. 11, Series 2024, as submitted.  It was noted that a public comment was received and
has been placed before Council for review.  The CORA fee would take effect for new requests after
July 1, 2024.  Discussion was held on what it costs to complete a CORA request and it was noted
that the first hour of a CORA request is completed at no charge as allowed by Statute.

Mayor Medina opened the item for public comment.  Charles Jeter spoke about the records requests
process which allows all citizens the right to view government records.  He spoke about how the
City of Fort Collins completes their records requests and asked Council to consider holding a
worksession so more discussion could be held on the process.  City Attorney Coleman stated that he
had spoke to the Fort Collins Records Clerk on their process prior to the Council meeting and they
do not place every email out for the public to review.  He stated that they have a retention policy for
all emails and the City should consider complying with the Colorado Municipal Retention Policy.
He noted that there is a process for the release of any records as allowed by the CORA regulations
and the City has a fee schedule and charges the fees for records as approved by Council.  George
Nelson stated that a worksession would be a way to resolve any issues that may need to be worked
out regarding the access to government records.  Mayor Medina closed the public comment section.
  
Mayor Pro-tem DeHaven moved that Council approve Resolution No. 11, Series 2024, a resolution
amending the 2024 Fee Schedule for the City of Cortez, and specifically the CORA Fee under the



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 4

section entitled Public Records Standard Fees and Charges and a new fee category under the Right
of Way Construction Permit to be entitled Surfaced Roadway Replacement Cold Patch and Surface
Roadway Replacement Hot Patch.  Councilmember Randle seconded the motion and the vote was
as follows:

DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver         Lewis          Medina        Randle         Spruell
    Yes                Yes                  Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes                No

c.   City Board and Committee Appointments.  City Clerk Smith stated that Council has held
interviews for several board openings over the past two worksessions (June 11 and June 25, 2024)
and may make appointments as they wish.  Council reviewed the applicants and made several
suggestions for the appointments to the various Boards and Committees.  Council noted that all the
applicants were really good and they encouraged the applicants not chosen to possibly serve on
another committee or subcommittee within the City.

Councilmember Dobry moved that Council appoint the following:
        Historic Preservation Board – Holly Tatnall   (three year seat)

    Planning and Zoning Commission – Nina Thao   (three year seat)
        Library Advisory Board – Aly Maun, Heidi Brugger and Damion Smith
                                     (three year seat each)
        Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Advisory Board – Kenneth Quigley, Richard Landreth,
                       Julia Buff, and Alan Klein     (two year seat each)
        Arts Advisory Board – Nyx Poulin  (one year seat)
Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion and the vote was as follows:

DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver         Lewis          Medina        Randle         Spruell
    Yes                Yes                   Yes                 Yes                Yes              Yes               Yes

  8.   DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES: None.

9.   CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  None.

10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  City Manager Sanders gave a report on the following items:

 I attended the annual Colorado Municipal League (CML) conference June 18 – 21, 2024 in
Loveland, CO with Mayor Rachel Medina, Councilmembers April Randle and Dennis Spruell,
and Attorney Patrick Coleman where we received a multitude of information that will help our
City. While at the conference, Mayor Medina was elected to the CML Executive Board for a two
year term. This is a prestigious position that will help our area to be better represented.

  
 The airport parking lot construction will break ground July 8, 2024. Signs will be placed

directing people to use the overflow parking lot across the street. The project should be
completed in 60 days.

 The City of Cortez will host the upcoming 4th of July celebration with the addition of a classic
car show this year. The Cortez Community Band and Flashback, a classic rock band, will



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 5

perform in Centennial Park beginning at 6 p.m.; food trucks and vendors will serve their fine
cuisines all day while parked along Mildred Road which will be closed between Montezuma and
Empire; and the evening will end with the annual fireworks display.

 Finance Director Kelly Koskie has been accepted as a mentor for the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) National Mentor Program and has been assigned a mentee from
Redmond, Oregon. Ms. Koskie has successfully guided the City through some overwhelming
and demanding financial situations over the past few years. This individual will be very fortunate
to receive the knowledge and expertise she has to share.

 
 Employee Highlight – Helen West

Helen West, Community and Economic Development Specialist for the City of Cortez joined the
City in June of 2023, and she has been making a great impact ever since.
In the year since she’s been here, she has helped the Historic Preservation Board and the Cortez
Public Arts Committee stay organized, as well as take on impactful projects such as Historic
Preservation Days, a “Historic Cortez” coloring book competition, the “81321 Launch” grant
initiative, as well as facilitating grant-funded surveys of the City’s historic assets. Additionally,
she is spearheading the City of Cortez’s Statewide Assessment Brownfields Grant including an
ongoing project of developing an Area Wide Plan for South Broadway. Potential outcomes of
this study include recommendations relating to zoning/land use refinements, capital projects, and
marketing/branding activities.
On behalf of the City she wrote and was awarded a $179,000 grant from the Colorado Office of
Economic Development & International Trade (OEDIT) to help six locally owned businesses
improve their facades, purchase equipment, and provide training. Helen has taken on many other
initiatives to support businesses and enhance economic opportunities in the City, as well as
supporting housing and land use code efforts currently underway in the Community and
Economic Development Department.
Helen is a skilled and dedicated employee who is working to enhance the quality of life for
residents of Cortez.

 I would like to congratulate Deputy Clerk Donna Murphy who has earned the designation of
Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC). This title was awarded to Ms. Murphy by the International
Institute of Municipal Clerks after her five year commitment and completion of the demanding
requirements. We applaud Ms. Murphy for her dedication and commitment to the City of Cortez.
Ms. Murphy was recognized for her accomplishment before Council with flowers and her
certificate.

11.  CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS

a.  Mayor’s Report on Workshop.  Mayor Medina stated that four interviews were held for the
Board/Committee open seats and appointments were made during the regular meeting.  Also, the
Planning and Zoning and City Council held a joint workshop to review the proposed Land Use
Code Chapters 1 and 3.  Additional open houses will be held on Wednesday, June 26, 2024 for
review of the code – one at the Chamber of Commerce from noon to 2:00 p.m. and one at City
Hall from 5:00 to 8:00 p.m.  It was noted that the Chapters are available on-line for anyone



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 6

wishing to review them and make comment.

b.  Colorado Municipal League Conference (CML).  Councilmember Randle stated that she
attended the CML Conference along with Councilmember Spruell, Mayor Medina, City Attorney
Coleman, and City Manager Sanders.  She stated that she attended many interesting classes which
included programs across the State (both private and non-profit) on homelessness, rejuvenating
mobile home parks in Montrose, and other helpful classes.  Councilmember Spruell spoke about
the classes which he attended which included Best Practices for Quasi-Judicial Decision Making,
Public Comment and 1st Amendment, the Art of Active Listening, and other classes that gave him
great insight.  Mayor Medina stated that she feels honored for the opportunity to be appointed to
the CML Executive Board and that she hopes to represent Cortez well and bring a voice to the
board.  Mayor Medina stated that she feels information was missing on how to support families
and child care issues and she hopes that topic can be discussed in the future.

12.  OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS:

a.  Councilmember Dobry moved that Council adjourn to Executive Session at 8:55 p.m. for the
purpose of discussing the possible transfer or sale of real property pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-
402(4)(a) and for the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to
negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S.
Section 24-6-402(4)(e).  Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows:

               DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver         Lewis          Medina        Randle         Spruell
        Yes                 Yes                  Yes                Yes                Yes              Yes              Yes

Council returned from Executive Session at 9:16 p.m.  Participants in the Executive Session
included City Manager Sanders, City Attorney Coleman, Mayor Medina, Mayor Pro-tem Lydia
DeHaven, Councilmember Dobry, Councilmember Keefauver, Councilmember Lewis,
Councilmember Spruell, and Councilmember Randle.  No adoption of any policy, position,
resolution, rule, regulations, or other formal action occurred during Executive Session.
 

13.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

a.  George Nelson, Cortez, spoke about his experience of dealing with the various utility providers
in the community during his purchase of property in the community and the lack of
communication with Montezuma County and other entities.  He asked if the City was considering
taking over the Cortez Sanitation District as it would be more beneficial and cooperative for the
citizens.  He asked what would need to be done to place the question on a ballot for the citizens to
be able to vote on the Cortez Sanitation District being part of the City of Cortez.  Mayor Medina
thanked Mr. Nelson for his comment and Council would discuss the request.

b. Charles Jeter spoke about his investigation on 1880 Industrial Road and 1050 Lebanon Road
noting that there seems to be clear favoritism given to the different projects with Planning and
Zoning laws not equally applied.  He spoke on how to go forward and stated that there is trouble
with the foundation of the staff and Planning and Zoning Board Members and information
requested has been shielded and not provided as requested.



  
CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING             JUNE 25, 2024          PAGE 7

14. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Pro-tem DeHaven moved that the regular meeting be adjourned at 9:25
p.m.  Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows:

      DeHaven         Dobry        Keefauver          Lewis          Medina        Randle         Spruell
           Yes                Yes                Yes                  Yes              Yes               Yes               Yes

________________________________
                                             Rachel B. Medina, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
           Linda L. Smith, City Clerk



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Kelly KoskieKelly Koskie 

Director of Finance 
123 Roger Smith Ave 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
kkoskie@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

SARA COFFEY, PAYROLL/SALES TAX ADMINISTRATOR

Date:Date:
 

07/02/24
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of the Expenditure List for July 9, 2024Approval of the Expenditure List for July 9, 2024
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Expenditure List



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

City Council CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,553.16$       
Total 1,553.16$       

City Attorney CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 223.47$          
Total 223.47$          

Human Resources CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 186.52$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 55.27$            

Total 241.79$          

Municipal Court MARSHALL SUMRALL LEGAL SERVICES - MULTIPLE 550.00$          
RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - SANDERS 75.00$            
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 858.01$          

Total 1,483.01$       

City Manager CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 335.74$          
Total 335.74$          

Finance CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 484.96$          
Total 484.96$          

City Clerk CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 223.83$          
Total 223.83$          

Events KSJD RADIO Blanket Purchase Order - Monthly Radio Marketin 250.00$          
KSJD RADIO Blanket Purchase Order - Monthly Radio Marketin 250.00$          
KSJD RADIO Blanket Purchase Order - Monthly Radio Marketin 250.00$          
KSJD RADIO Blanket Purchase Order - Monthly Radio Marketin 250.00$          
KSJD RADIO Blanket Purchase Order - Monthly Radio Marketin 250.00$          
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 30.70$            

Total 1,280.70$       

Library CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 4,857.41$       
TERRI L. STORM E-rate Consulting Services for Funding Year 2023 1,200.00$       
TERRI L. STORM E-rate Consulting Services for Funding Year 2024 2,400.00$       
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TMS1042810 Timemist Refills, Mango - LB 69.59$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TMS1042786 Timemist Refills, Country Garaden - 72.02$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES TMS1042756 Timemist Refill, Caribbean Waters - 81.62$            
ZORO TOOLS INC GJO22200 Hardwound Paper Towels 12 rolls/case    67.78$            

Total 8,748.42$       

General Services CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,432.91$       
Total 1,432.91$       

Building Maint CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,638.87$       



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 1,638.87$       

City Hall Operations WAGNER ENTERPRISE, L.L.C. JANITORIAL SERVICES 2,300.00$       
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL 777.91$          
XEROX CORPORATION EQUPMENT RENTAL 1,912.00$       
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Elkay 51300C NSF/ANSI Certified Filter - CH 142.48$          

Total 5,132.39$       

Welcome Center ORKIN LLC PEST CONTROL SERVICES 141.99$          
CENTURYLINK PHONES 96.64$            
IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 71.16$            

Total 309.79$          

Police Department CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 4,835.30$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 152.63$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 228.71$          
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 12,736.73$    
MIDWEST RADAR & EQUIPMENT Certify radar guns 615.00$          
INDUSTRIAL/ORGANIZATIONAL SOLUT Police Officer Tests 125.00$          
GALL'S LLC Shipping 16.00$            
GALL'S LLC 511 Mens performance s/s polo 126.72$          
GALL'S LLC Salomon Speedcross Boot 145.36$          
GALL'S LLC 511 Stryke pant 221.76$          
GALL'S LLC Shipping 1.55$               
GALL'S LLC Shipping 5.20$               
GALL'S LLC Brass Nameplates 47.84$            
GALL'S LLC Handcuffs 160.08$          
PIONEER PRINTING Municipal Tickets 485.00$          
DIGITCOM ELECTRONICS, INC. Program radio 95.00$            
DIGITCOM ELECTRONICS, INC. Cables, mounts, antennas for 3 radios 935.53$          
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 15.76$            
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,455.13$       
LORI MILLICH REIMB PETTY CASH - R BRINKERHOFF - EVIDENCE  15.00$            
MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFF APR 2024 INMATE CHARGES 1,900.00$       
MONTEZUMA COUNTY SHERIFF MAY 2024 INMATE CHARGES 4,200.00$       
WAGNER ENTERPRISE, L.L.C. JANITORIAL SERVICE 1,499.58$       
MANE SHIPPING LLC SHIPPIING 20.28$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Oasis 033879-001 VersaFilter Cartridge - PD 104.54$          

Total 30,143.70$    

Animal Shelter CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 437.37$          
DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL SPAY 112.00$          
FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC CASTRATION 64.00$            
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 66.97$            
HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTIONAL REN63314-CA Can Liners, 33x39, 1.5 mil, Black - K 86.64$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 766.98$          

Public Works CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 3,357.63$       
ESRI 87192 ArcGIS Desktop Basic Single Use Primary M    460.00$          
ESRI 52384 ArcGIS Desktop Advanced Concurrent Use     3,475.00$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 55.27$            
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 7,805.42$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 229.02$          
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 244194 Pump Repair Packing Kit for 3400 30.63$            
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 399.16$          

Total 15,812.13$    

Parks & Recreation CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 239.86$          
Total 239.86$          

Outdoor Pool CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 2,303.87$       
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES CONCESSIONS 717.99$          
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PADLOCKK 26.37$            
PIONEER PRINTING SWIM CARDS 437.00$          

Total 3,485.23$       

Golf Pro RUDOSKY GOLF, LLC Blanket PO - Professional Services - Golf Pro - Qua  10,125.00$    
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 652.79$          

Total 10,777.79$    

Golf Course Maint CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 556.12$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 53.22$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Echo P21002921 Filter Cover 13.66$            
HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTIONAL Tork 12024402 Mini Jumbo Tissue - GC 100.16$          
KW ENTERPRISES, LLC. 1 ton Double Washed Sand for topdressing and bu 1,375.00$       
SENERGY PETROLEUM Dyed Diesel for Golf Maintenance 1,362.08$       

Total 3,460.24$       

Parks CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 3,284.21$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 53.22$            
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 ZONE BATTERY 237.94$          

Total 3,575.37$       

Recreation CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 748.30$          
Total 748.30$          

Planning & Building CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 683.13$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 232.29$          

Total 915.42$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Shop CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,293.77$       
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. XDHT 11R22.5 Drive Tire Recaps - Refuse Units 1,024.25$       
MCCANDLESS TRUCK CENTER Weir 134A Coolant, 30LB 250.00$          
XEROX CORPORATION Blanket PO - B7035 WorkCenter s/n 5DA859596,  298.89$          
XEROX CORPORATION Blanket PO - C8045 AltaLink Color Copier, s/n 8TB   353.22$          
XEROX CORPORATION Blanket PO - B7035 WorkCenter s/n 5DA859596,  363.32$          

Total 3,583.45$       

Technology CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 340.91$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 43.23$            
CENTURYLINK PHONES 71.53$            

Total 455.67$          

Streets WCA CONSTRUCTION, LLC PW-24-02-SD Public Works Storm Drain Project -  88,575.38$    
K & K CONCRETE INC 2024 Concrete Cost Share Project PW-24-01-S, Cu   39,647.66$    
K & K CONCRETE INC 2024 Concrete Cost Share Project PW-24-01-S, Co  11,175.15$    

Total 139,398.19$  

Airport CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 2,908.18$       
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 33.15$            
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 48.21$            
LUMACURVE AIRFIELD SIGNS SXL4-20: Small, 4FT Panel 487.90$          
LUMACURVE AIRFIELD SIGNS SXL6-20: Small, 6FT Panel 560.60$          
LUMACURVE AIRFIELD SIGNS SUL-6SF-LC Size 1, 6 foot, Single Faced, Unlighted     2,892.00$       

Total 6,930.04$       

Rec Center CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 9,685.99$       
OFFICE DEPOT 8820950 Iconex Thermal Receipt Rolls, 2-1/4 x 55   30.90$            
OFFICE DEPOT 196643 Boise X9 Multiuse Copy Paper, 8.5x14, 20   55.37$            
OFFICE DEPOT 196517 Boise X9 Multiuse Copy Paper, 8.5x11, 20   230.94$          

Total 10,003.20$    

Water CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 49.12$            
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 18,866.76$    
MONTEZUMA WATER COMPANY WATER 57371 308.80$          
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 1,261.44$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 200.58$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY #51 Ford Insert Stiffener for 3/4 CTS 13.80$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 2 Threaded Bronze Gate Valve, NL 38.34$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 3/4 x 100 CTS 200 PSI Polyethylene Tubing DR9 41.00$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 DI Pipe Mech Restraint (Black) 45.88$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4 DI Pipe Mech Restraint (Black) 51.94$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 2 x 100 Poly Tape, Printed Corrosion 60.30$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 DI Pipe Mech Restraint (Black) 61.06$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 3 x 1000 Detectable Tape - WATER - Blue 62.38$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4 L P MJ Solid Sleeve, SSB, DI, Less Access 73.29$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 2 Threaded Bronze Gate Valve, NL 76.68$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY C44-33-Q-NL Ford 3/4 QJ Coupling 78.60$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6x4 MJxMJ Reducer, CL, SSB, DI, Less Access 78.92$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 2 x 24 Galv. Nipple 79.23$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 2 90 Street Ell, Threaded, NL Brass 89.79$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 MJ Cap, SSB, DI, Less Access 90.20$            
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6x2 MJ Tapped Plug, SSB DI 104.60$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4 MJ Bolt & Gasket Pak 106.14$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 MJ Plug, SSB, DI 107.11$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4 MJ Tee, CL, SSB, DI, Less Access. 108.36$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 MJ Cap, SSB, DI, Less Access 110.24$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 5-1/4 Valve Box Drop Lid, Marked WATER 110.76$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8x2 MJ Tapped Cap, SSB, DI, Less Access 122.77$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4 PVC Pipe Mech Restraint (Red) 125.80$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 4x20 Class 305 Pipe, C900 PVC DR14 144.80$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 #1100C Bell Restraint for C900 - Quote MN0501 172.68$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 LP MJ Solid Sleeve, SSB, DI, Less Access 197.31$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY NL 3/4 FB1000-3-Q Ford Ball Corp Stop 208.20$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 24 x 440 8 Mil Black Polywrap Perferated @ 22 220.07$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 LP MJ Solid Sleeve, SSB, DI, Less Access 245.54$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY Romac 202BS-9.62x2 CC Brass Tapping Saddle w/  251.29$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 MJ Bolt & Gasket Pak 273.00$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 MJ Bolt & Gasket Pak 283.08$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 36 6850 Valve Box Bottom Section, Screw Type 338.22$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8x6 MJxMJ Reducer, CL, SSB, DI, Less Access 343.89$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY Romac 202BS-7.5x1 CC Brass Tapping Saddle w/SS 385.74$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 MJ Tee, CL, SSB, DI, Less Access. 388.36$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 Foster Adaptor, w/MJ Accessory Kit 406.68$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 12 Gauge Tracer Wire, Blue, 500 ft Rolls 420.00$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 PVC Pipe Mech Restraint (Red) 458.52$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 26 Valve Box Top Section, Screw Type 468.78$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY Romac 202BS-7.5x3/4 CC Brass Tapping Saddle w/  578.61$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 Foster Adaptor w/MJ Accessory Kit 601.32$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 PVC Pipe Mech Restraint (Red) 621.28$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 MJ Tee, CL, SSB, DI, Less Access. 871.92$          
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8x20 Class 305 Pipe, C900 DR14 2,014.40$       
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 8 MJ RW DI OL Valve, Less Access 3,673.34$       
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6 MJ RW DI OL Valve, Less Access 4,617.00$       
DANA KEPNER COMPANY 6x20 Class 305 Pipe, C900 PVC DR14 15,194.40$    
SGM INC. Blanket PO - WTP Infrastructure Consulting - Trea     1,946.25$       

Total 57,848.57$    

CCN Fund CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 7.88$               
Total 7.88$               



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JUNE 28, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Refuse CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 2,025.15$       
WASTEBUILT ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUT  PCP1 Caster Pad, Quick Change w/ hardware 489.12$          
CIRSA QUARTERLY PROPERTY/CASUALTY COVERAGE 104.09$          
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Realspace Hurston HB Executive Chair - Recycling 129.99$          

Total 2,748.35$       

Total 313,989.41$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JULY 5, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Finance GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS CERTIFICATE REVIEW FEE 460.00$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$        

Total 1,362.08$    

Library CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 3,503.40$    
FASTENAL COMPANY 0492492 HVAC Filter 20x20x2 102.00$        

Total 3,605.40$    

City Hall Operations FASTENAL COMPANY 4300471 HVAC Filter 20x20x1 49.80$          
FASTENAL COMPANY 0492495 HVAC Filter 24x24x2 126.00$        
TRANE US INC RTU1 s/n C16H05384 - Perform and complete PM, C            2,265.00$    

Total 2,440.80$    

Welcome Center FASTENAL COMPANY 0492490 HVAC Filter 16x20x2 44.64$          
Total 44.64$          

Police Department DELL MARKETING L.P. Dell US Backlit Keyboard w/106 keys 34.19$          
DELL MARKETING L.P. Dell 6-cell 97 Wh Lithium Ion Battery for Laptop 105.74$        
DAVE GUY,P.D. CHAPLIN Counseling services POMH 24-009 Grant 4,600.00$    
MODERN MARKETING Shield shaped stickers 640.00$        
MODERN MARKETING Shield shaped stickers 960.00$        
AXIS HEALTH SYSTEM Blanket PO  - Jail contract 350.00$        
MODERN MARKETING Shipping 14.00$          
MODERN MARKETING Shipping 14.00$          
SURVIVAL ARMOR INC. Class A Carrier 349.83$        
AUBUCHON CUSTOM PRODUCTIONS Materials/Labor - Body work, paint Unit 410 1,229.00$    
TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE PERSON SEARCH 78.80$          
MANE SHIPPING LLC SHIPPING 14.76$          
FASTENAL COMPANY 0481494 HVAC Filter 16x16x2 77.40$          
FASTENAL COMPANY 0452067 HVAC Filter 18x24x2 145.20$        

Total 8,612.92$    

Animal Shelter FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC SPAY 112.00$        
Total 112.00$        

Outdoor Pool SLAVENS TRUE VALUE PADLOCK, CHAIN 39.00$          
DURANGO COCA COLA BOTTLING CO CONCESSIONS 797.90$        
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES CONCESSIONS 739.39$        

Total 1,576.29$    

Parks BRAVO CLEANING & RESTORATION CITY PARK TRASH REMOVAL 3,660.00$    
LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. MONTHLY RENTALS 1,884.00$    
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 ROTORS 824.61$        
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE ROPE 6.82$            
CORTEZ ELECTRIC SERVICE CALL TO VETERAN PARK 634.56$        



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JULY 5, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 7,009.99$    

Recreation NATURE CENTER AT BUTLER CORNER FIELD TRIP 210.00$        
Total 210.00$        

Shop FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 20.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 21.60$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 21.60$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 62.00$          
FOUR STATES TIRE CO. Blanket PO - Tire Repairs and Alignments 66.96$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY FOAM SEALANT 12.98$          
FOUR CORNERS WELDING & GAS SUPP4043 Alum. Wire .030 1# 33.06$          
ABLE TOWING OF CORTEZ OTR801315 PP-DC Park Control Vavle 421.32$        
KEESEE MOTORS BB5Z7821850AB Door Lock Knob - Unit 474 18.76$          
KEESEE MOTORS FL3Z15045G34AA Mat - Unit 1237 22.38$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 3.86$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 5.59$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 6.77$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 7.19$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 11.72$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 15.29$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 20.29$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 36.39$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 48.99$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 49.27$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 54.93$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 121.53$        
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 132.44$        
SUPERIOR SERVICES, LLC Blanket PO - Janitorial Services at the Service Cente 1,950.00$    
FASTENAL COMPANY Blanket PO - Batteries, 1st Aid Supplies 67.84$          
CHOICE BUILDING SUPPLY Security Door w/deadbolt for SC Shop - Estimate #5 1,200.00$    
FASTENAL COMPANY 0492490 HVAC Filter 16x20x2 44.64$          
FASTENAL COMPANY 0492492 HVAC Filter 20x20x2 51.00$          

Total 4,528.40$    

Technology DELL MARKETING L.P. Dell P2425H 24 inch Monitors 620.60$        
DELL MARKETING L.P. Dell Latitude 5540 Laptop - Quote #3000177741904 851.25$        

Total 1,471.85$    

Dispatch STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP210A W2100A Print Cartridge, Black 157.36$        
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP210A W2101A Print Cartridge, Cyan 189.86$        
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP210A W2102A Print Cartridge, Yellow 189.86$        
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP210A W2103A Print Cartridge, Magenta 189.86$        
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$        

Total 1,629.02$    



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING JULY 5, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Rec Center CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$        
ULINE SUPPLIES 893.47$        
ULINE RECYCLE CONTAINER 3,392.37$    

Total 5,187.92$    

Water CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$        
Total 902.08$        

CCN Fund VISIONARY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Blanket PO - Tower rental, Business wireless interne    1,980.32$    
Total 1,980.32$    

Total 40,673.71$  



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

07/01/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a renewal application for a Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine LiquorApproval of a renewal application for a Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine Liquor
License for Western Refining Retail, Inc., DBA Speedway #9499, located at 921 EastLicense for Western Refining Retail, Inc., DBA Speedway #9499, located at 921 East
Main Street, Cortez.Main Street, Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Renewal- Speedway #9499



                                                                           
7/1/2024

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM:       Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT: RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR A FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE AND
WINE LIQUOR LICENSE FROM WESTERN REFINING RETAIL, INC., DBA
SPEEDWAY #9499, LOCATED AT 921 EAST MAIN STREET, CORTEZ

BACKGROUND

The renewal application referred to above was filed in the City Clerk’s office on July 1, 2024.  The
application appears to be complete and all fees were paid.

ISSUES

The fire inspection report shows no violation to the Fire Code.

The police report shows no liquor violations were found over the past twelve months.

The sales tax account is current.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of renewal Fermented Malt Beverage and Wine Liquor License for
Speedway #9499, located at 921 East Main Street, Cortez.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

07/01/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a renewal application for a Retail Liquor Store Liquor License forApproval of a renewal application for a Retail Liquor Store Liquor License for
Seventeem Eighteen Cortez, Inc., DBA Liquid Assets, located at 718 East Main Street,Seventeem Eighteen Cortez, Inc., DBA Liquid Assets, located at 718 East Main Street,
Cortez.Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Renewal- Liquid Assets



                                                                           
7/1/2024

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM:       Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT: RENEWAL APPLICATION ON A RETAIL LIQUOR STORE LICENSE FOR
SEVEN EIGHTEEN CORTEZ, INC., DBA LIQUID ASSETS, LOCATED AT 718
EAST MAIN STREET, CORTEZ

BACKGROUND

The renewal application referred to above was filed in the City Clerk’s office on July 1, 2024.  The
application appears to be complete and all fees were paid.

ISSUES

The fire inspection report shows no violation to the Fire Code.

The police report shows no liquor violations were found over the past twelve months.

The sales tax account is current.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of renewal Retail Liquor Store License for Seven Eighteen Cortez, Inc.,
DBA Liquid Assets, located at 718 East Main Street, Cortez.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

07/01/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a renewal application for a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for LaApproval of a renewal application for a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for La
Casita de Cortez, LLC., DBA La Casita de Cortez, located at 332 East Main Street,Casita de Cortez, LLC., DBA La Casita de Cortez, located at 332 East Main Street,
Cortez.Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Renewal- La Casita



Hotel and

                                                                           
7/1/2024

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM:       Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT: RENEWAL APPLICATION ON A HOTEL AND RESTAURANT LIQUOR
LICENSE FOR LA CASITA DE CORTEZ, LLC, DBA LA CASITA DE CORTEZ,
LOCATED AT 332 EAST MAIN STREET, CORTEZ.

BACKGROUND

The renewal application referred to above was filed in the City Clerk’s office on July 1, 2024.  The
application appears to be complete and all fees were paid.

ISSUES

The fire inspection report shows no violation to the Fire Code.

The police report shows no liquor violations were found over the past twelve months.

The sales tax account is current.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for La Casita de Cortez,
Located at 332 East Main Street, Cortez.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rachael MarchbanksRachael Marchbanks 

Community/Economic Development Director 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

Date:Date:
 

7/09/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Resolution No. 10, Series 2024Resolution No. 10, Series 2024
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The standards set forth in Chapter 5 of this code and shall include paving and layout of streets, alleys and
sidewalks, means of ingress and egress, provisions for drainage, parking spaces, areas designated for landscaping,
and other aspects deemed by the City Council necessary to consider in the interest of promoting the public health,
safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
Terry Tevault (the "Applicant"), on behalf of The Vault Property LLC (the "Owner"), is proposing a site plan to
construct an addition to the existing structure located at 1240 Lebanon Rd.  The proposal will double the size of
the existing Body by Design building.  The lot is 3.15 acres and currently houses the existing Body by Design
fitness center with associated parking and other improvements. The property is zoned Industrial (I). See included
Staff Report.
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Not studied.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve Resolution No. 10, Series 2024, a resolution approving the site
development plan for an addition to the existing building on property located at 1240 Lebanon Road, Cortez,
Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone, with four conditions stated in the resolution.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council approve Resolution No. 10, Series 2024, a resolution approving the site development
plan for an addition to the existing building on property located at 1240 Lebanon Rd, Cortez, Colorado, in the
Industrial (I) zone, with the four conditions stated in the resolution.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report
Resolution No. 10, Series 2024
Planning & Zoning Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
Drainage report
Documentation



City of Cortez Community & Economic Development Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date: July 9, 2024
 Project No. PL- LU24-0005

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez City Council

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on an Application for a site plan for a 4,993 sq. ft. addition to the existing
4,993 sq. ft. private gym (Body by Design) located on property at 1240 Lebanon Rd.,
Cortez, CO (the “Property”), zoned Industrial (I).

APPLICANT: Terry Tevault
OWNER: The Vault Property LLC
ATTACHMENTS: City Council Resolution No. 10, Series2024

P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
Plan Set

BACKGROUND
Terry Tevault (the “Applicant”), on behalf of The Vault Property LLC (the “Owner”), is proposing a
site plan to construct an addition to the existing structure located at 1240 Lebanon Rd.  The proposal
will double the size of the existing Body by Design building.  The lot is 3.15 acres and currently houses
the existing Body by Design fitness center with associated parking and other improvements. The
Property is zoned  Industrial (I).

The Property is located in the Industrial Park and bounded on two sides by the Carpenter Natural Area and two
sides by Industrial zoned properties. The property to the north is zoned Industrial and vacant.  The
property to the west is zoned Industrial, it is owned by the City of Cortez, and it includes the rifle and
pistol club.



Site Location



DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Development Standard I Zone Requirement Proposed
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 10,000 137,214 sq. ft. (3.15 acres)
Min. front yard (ft.) 15’ 167’
Min. side yard (ft) 7’ 20’
Min. rear yard (ft) 7’ 300’ +
Max. lot coverage 50% 7.2%
Min. floor area n/a n/a
Max height (ft) 35’
Parking 33spaces 40 spaces
Landscaping 10% or 13,722 sq. ft. 11,300 landscaped and

75,120 in natural land
cover for a total of 62%

ISSUES

The purpose of the site plan review is to ensure compliance with all regulations and to protect the public
health, safety and welfare, to promote balanced growth, to ensure adequate provision of public services
and facilities and to guide the character of the city. Section 6-14.12 (f) of the Land Use Code (“LUC”)
states:

The Planning Commission in its consideration shall use the standards set forth in Chapter 5 of this code
and shall include paving and layout of streets, alleys and sidewalks, means of ingress and egress,
provisions for drainage, parking spaces, areas designated for landscaping, and other aspects deemed by
the planning commission necessary to consider in the interest of promoting the public health, safety,
order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

DISCUSSION

The project as submitted appears to meet all development standards.

Drainage:
The site rises steeply from Lebanon Rd. and significant paved area is proposed.  The applicants will
need to address drainage to the satisfaction of the City.

Comments below and suggested conditions will ensure adequate access, drainage, and all other aspects
to promote the public health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare.



AGENCY REVIEW

GIS Coordinator (Doug Roth)
Body By Design: Flood plain borders the south side of the buildings, however since F.F. elevation
for the expansion is that same as the original building this should not be an issue. 1240 Lebanon
Road address should cover both buildings unless the spaces are separated by a partition, then unit
numbers will need to be assigned.

Cortez Sanitation District (Jim Webb)
The Sanitation District has no issues with this proposal

City Engineer (Kevin Kissler)
 Include site plan showing drainage flow pattern and total runoff volume calculations from

Colorado licensed professional engineer for 100 year intensity 24 hour duration storm event per
Cortez municipal code. A retention structure will be required if total displaced volume equals or
exceeds 0.1 acre foot.

 Show boundaries of AE flood plain on drainage plan. Applicant to demonstrate that total
improvements will result in less than 0.5' rise of 100 year flood elevation. If rise is 0.5' or
greater, a flood plain development permit application must be completed

Floodplain



City Engineer – additional comments dated 6/25/24 on revised drainage plan
Thank you for sending me the updated drainage report from Stoner Engineering for Body by Design. I
performed a preliminary review and see a few issues:

1. The drainage report does not include a site plan showing drainage patterns and directions
2. The sheet included does not show the AE flood plain that is in that area
3. No flood plain development permit or 'no rise' certification is included
4. The storage volume calculation was performed incorrectly and suggests that retention is not

required, when if fact it should be when the calculation is carried out correctly.
a. Specifically, detention volume is not calculated by the product of time of concentration

and peak flow, in this case that only represents an 11 minute storm duration and not the 24
hour storm duration that is specified in Cortez municipal code.

5. The data referenced does not show an intensity value for the 24 hour storm event, this is the data
from the 2009 CDS and it probably should, however the responsibility is usually on the developer
in that case to either find that data or ask the City to provide it.

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Council can approve the application for the site development plan for the proposed addition
on property located at 1240 Lebanon Rd., Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone; or

2. The Council can deny the application for the site development plan and state its reasons; or
3. The Council can ask for more information and continue the application to a date certain; or
4. The Council can approve the application for the site development plan, and state any conditions

it feels would be necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code.

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Commission recommended Alternative “4” above, approval of the application for the site
development plan through P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024, with the following 5 conditions:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must be
satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents. Specifically, all
public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of the 2009 City of Cortez
Construction Design Standards and Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by the
City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or engineer, must
be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building permit obtained prior to
any construction on the Property.

3. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the applicant’s engineer shall certify that all
improvements were constructed in conformance with the approved plans.

4. A drainage report meeting CDPHE requirements shall be submitted and approved by the City
Engineer prior to issuance of a building permit for the property.



5. Improvements shall be installed prior to issuances of a Certificate of Occupancy. In the event that
construction of the building and all other requirements are met prior to the installation of the
landscaping, and the Applicant desires a Certificate of Occupancy, the Applicant may choose to provide
a financial surety and obtain a CO in advance of completing the landscaping improvements. In this
event, the Applicant shall provide an assurance bond, letter of credit, or other financial security agreed
to by both parties, providing a guarantee of installation of the landscaping within a time frame approved
by the City of Cortez.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

If the City Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion the Council
could make is as follows:

I make a motion that the Cortez City Council approve Resolution No. 10, Series 2024, a resolution
approving the site development plan for an addition to the existing building on property located
at 1240 Lebanon Rd, Cortez, Colorado, in the Industrial (I) zone, with the conditions stated in the
Resolution.



CITY OF CORTEZ
RESOLUTION NO. 10, SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SITE DEVELOMENT PLAN FOR AN ADDITION
TO AN EXISTING COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 1240 INDUSTRIAL RD.,

CORTEZ, COLORADO IN THE INDUSTRIAL (I) ZONING DISTRICT

WHEREAS, Terry Tevault (the “Applicant”), on behalf of the owner The Vault Property
LLC (the “Owner”) has applied for review of a site development plan for an addition to the existing
fitness building to be located on property at 1240 Industrial Rd., Cortez, Colorado (the “Property”)
and more particularly described as:

Lot 4 of the Cortez Light Industrial Park per Reception No. 652875

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.14, Site Plans, indicates that the owner or developer
of a property may request an application of these site plan requirements for development on
property located in the Industrial (I) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission received evidence and testimony,
reviewed the site plan for an addition to the existing building on the Property at its June 4, 2024
meeting, and is recommending approval of the site plan with conditions, as evidenced in the
adoption of P&Z Resolution No. 4, Series 2024; and

WHEREAS, it appears that all requirements of Chapters 5.00 and 6.00 of the City’s Land
Use Code for development of the Property have been or can be met.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL:

THAT, this Resolution No. 10, Series 2024, establishes conditions of approval for the site
plan on the Property; and

THAT, the site plan, and full application for the Property are hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions to ensure compliance with the standards in the Cortez Land Use Code for
a site development plan:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts
must be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.
Specifically, all public improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of
the 2009 City of Cortez Construction Design Standards and Specifications.

2. The appropriate construction drawings and reports for the project, revised as required by
the City Engineer shall be signed and stamped by a Colorado licensed architect or
engineer, must be approved by the Building Official and City Engineer, and a building
permit obtained prior to any construction on the Property.



3. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy the applicant’s engineer shall certify that
all improvements were constructed in conformance with the approved plans.

4. Improvements shall be installed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. In the
event that construction of the building and all other requirements are met prior to the
installation of the landscaping, and the Applicant desires a Certificate of Occupancy, the
Applicant may choose to provide a financial surety and obtain a CO in advance of
completing the landscaping improvements. In this event, the Applicant shall provide an
assurance bond, letter of credit, or other financial security agreed to by both parties,
providing a guarantee of installation of the landscaping within a time frame approved by
the City of Cortez.

AND THAT, the Owner and the Applicant shall coordinate with City staff to ensure that
these conditions are fully met.

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF JULY, 2024

         

___________________________________
Rachel B. Medina, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Linda L. Smith, City Clerk



























































































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rachael MarchbanksRachael Marchbanks 

Community/Economic Development Director 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

Date:Date:
 

7/09/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Resolution No. 12, Series 2024Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The City Council shall, in its action on the preliminary plat, consider the physical arrangement of the subdivision,
and determine the adequacy of street rights-of-way and alignment, and the compliance with the Cortez
thoroughfare plan, the City street standards, the existing street pattern in the area, and compliance with all
applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The Applicant, Walter C. Reed, is proposing a three-lot minor subdivision/re-subdivision of two existing parcels
of land located at 1082 and 1060 N Mildred Rd. (the "Parcels").   The Parcels are currently vacant and zoned
residential manufactured home district (MH).  The request is to subdivide the Parcels to create three separate,
equally sized parcels. See staff report.
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Not studied.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve the Minor Subdivision for Minor Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat of
Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision and state any conditions it determines would be
necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council approve Resolution No. 12, Series 2024, a resolution approving the Minor Subdivision
Plat for Amended Plat of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision located at 1082 at
1060 N. Mildred St, Cortez, Colorado, submitted by Walter C. Reed, with the condition stated in the Resolution.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report
Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
Plat and Documents



City of Cortez
Community & Economic
Dev. Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date:  July 9, 2024
Project No. PL24-0001

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez City Council

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Application for a Minor Subdivision plat for a three-lot subdivision

APPLICANT:  Walter C. Reed
OWNER:   Walter C. Reed

ATTACHMENTS:   Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
Plat, letter of application

BACKGROUND
The Applicant, Walter C. Reed, is proposing a three-lot minor subdivision/re-subdivision of two
existing parcels of land located at 1082 and 1060 N Mildred Rd. (the “Parcels”).   The Parcels are
currently vacant and zoned residential manufactured home district (MH).  The request is to subdivide
the two parcels to create three separate, equally sized parcels.

The Parcels are bounded on the north, east and south by parcels also located within the MH zone and on
the west by residential multi-family (R2) zoned land, just south of the hospital.

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Development Standard MH Zone Requirement Proposed
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 6,000 sq. ft. Tract A:  7,071 sq. ft.

Tract B:  7,074 sq. ft.
Tract C:  7,076 sq. ft.

Min. front yard (ft.) 20’
Min. side yard (ft) 7’ .
Min. rear yard (ft) 7’
Max. lot coverage 50%
Max. height 35’



ISSUES

The City Council shall, in its action on the preliminary plat, consider the physical arrangement of the
subdivision, and determine the adequacy of street rights-of-way and alignment, and the compliance with
the Cortez thoroughfare plan, the City street standards, the existing street pattern in the area, and
compliance with all applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. The Council shall also ascertain
that adequate easements for proposed or future utility service and surface drainage are provided, and
that the lot size and area are adequate to comply with the minimum requirements for the underlying
zone district and for the type of sanitary sewage disposal proposed.

The minor subdivision as submitted appears to meet all applicable development standards.    Conditions
below will ensure adequate access, drainage, and all other aspects to promote the public health, safety,
order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare.

AGENCY REVIEW

GIS Coordinator (Doug Roth)
Due to N Mildred Rd being an arterial road and the proximity of driveway accesses to the busy
intersection with Jackson St, would it be possible for the developer to utilize the 15ft alley to the east
of the proposed lots as a shared driveway? This would reduce the amount of area encumbered by
access easements on the lots themselves.

Empire Electric (Greg South)
No comment.

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Council can approve the Minor Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6
and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision, as submitted by Walter C. Reed; or

2. The Council can deny the application for the Minor Subdivision and state its reasons; or
3. The Council can ask for more information and continue the application to a date certain; or
4. The Council can approve the Minor Subdivision for Minor Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat

of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision and state any conditions it
determines would be necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approve Resolution No. 12, Series 2024, a resolution
approving the Minor Subdivision for Minor Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6
and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts Subdivision, with the conditions stated in the Resolution.

If the Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion could be the
following:



I move that Council approve Resolution No. 12, Series 2024, a resolution approving the Minor
Subdivision Plat for Amended Plat of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 of Block 8 of the Cornetts
Subdivision submitted by Walter C. Reed, located at 1082 at 1060 N. Mildred St, Cortez,
Colorado, with the condition stated in the Resolution.



CITY OF CORTEZ
RESOLUTION NO. 12, SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR AN AMENDED
PLAT OF LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 AND 7 OF BLOCK 8 OF THE CORNETTS

SUBDIVISION (AMENDED) PER THE PLAT THEREOF FILED IN BOOK 7 AT PAGE
15 RECORDS OF MONTEZUMA COUNTY LOCATED IN SW/4 SW/4 SECTION 24,
T.36 N., R.16 W., N.M.P.M., IN THE RESIDENTIAL MANUFACTURED HOME (MH)

ZONING DISTRICT IN CORTEZ, COLORADO

WHEREAS, Walter C. Reed  (the “Applicant”), has applied for approval of a minor
subdivision plat to re-subdivide two existing lots into three lots located at 1060 and 1082 N.
Mildred St. in the residential manufactured home (MH) zone district in Cortez, Colorado (the
“Property”); and

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.11, Minor Subdivision Plats, indicates that the
owner or developer of a property may request a subdivision pursuant to all code requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the application and proposed plat for a three-lot
subdivision for the Property; and

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at the City Council’s July 9,
2024 meeting, Staff recommended certain conditions of approval to be considered by the City
Council; and

WHEREAS, it appears that all applicable requirements of the City of Cortez Land Use
Code for subdivision of the Property have been or can be met.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL:

THAT, this Resolution No. 12, Series 2024, contains the conditions of approval for the
subdivision of the Property; and

THAT, the plat and full application for the Property are hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions to ensure compliance with the standards in the City of Cortez Land Use Code
for a preliminary plat:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must
be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.

 



AND THAT, the Applicant shall coordinate with City Staff to ensure that these conditions
are fully met.

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF JULY, 2024.

___________________________________
 Rachael B. Medina, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Linda Smith, City Clerk



LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

BLOCK 8

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

COLORADOCORTEZ

UT

DOVE CREEK

MANCOS
DURANGO

TELLURIDE

DOLORES
RICO

TOWAOC

SURVEY STANDARD LLC

AZ NM

LOCATED IN THE SW/4SW/4 SECTION 24,
 TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 16 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

CITY OF CORTEZ, MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO

SHEET

1
OF

1FILE: DIRECTED BY: PREPARED BY:
WALTER REEDSS24-05-CTZ08 BRIAN    05-30-2024

25 N. MADISON ST.
CORTEZ, COLORADO (81321)

PHONE: (970)565-2480
EMAIL: brian@4corners-survey.com

LOCATED IN THE SW/4SW/4 SECTION 24,
 TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 16 WEST, NEW MEXICO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,

CITY OF CORTEZ, MONTEZUMA COUNTY, COLORADO





















CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rachael MarchbanksRachael Marchbanks 

Community/Economic Development Director 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

Date:Date:
 

7/09/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Resolution No. 13, Series 2024Resolution No. 13, Series 2024
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The City Council shall, in its action on the preliminary plat, consider the physical arrangement of the subdivision,
and determine the adequacy of street rights-of-way and alignment, and the compliance with the Cortez
thoroughfare plan, the City street standards, the existing street pattern in the area, and compliance with all
applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. The Council shall also ascertain that adequate easements for
proposed or future utility service and surface drainage are provided, and that the lot size and area are adequate to
comply with the minimum requirements for the underlying zone district and for the type of sanitary sewage
disposal proposed. 

 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The Applicants, Amador and John Garcia, on behalf of the Owner, Amador M. Garcia & Son, Inc., are proposing
a two-lot minor subdivision of the existing .15 acre parcel of land located at 450 E. Main (the "Parcel").   The
Parcel currently includes two separate buildings/businesses.  The request is to subdivide the Parcel so that each
building is on its own, separate parcel. 
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Not studied.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve Resolution No. 13, Series 2024, a resolution approving the 1st Amended
Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7 F.R. Coffin's Addition to the Town of Cortez, located at 450 E. Main St, Cortez,
Colorado, submitted by John & Amador Garcia, with the conditions stated in the Resolution.

MOTIONMOTION
If the Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion could be the following:
I move that City Council approve Resolution No. 13, Series 2024, a resolution approving the 1st Amended Plat
of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7 F.R. Coffin's Addition to the Town of Cortez, located at 450 E. Main St, Cortez,
Colorado, submitted by John & Amador Garcia, with the conditions stated in the Resolution.

 

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report



Resolution No. 13, Series 2024
Site Plan
Documentation



City of Cortez
Community & Economic
Dev. Dept.
123 Roger Smith Avenue
Cortez, CO 81321

Meeting Date:  July 9, 2024
Project No. PL24-005

MEMO

TO: Members of the Cortez City Council

FROM: Nancy Dosdall, Contract City Planner

SUBJECT: Application for a Minor Subdivision plat for a two-lot subdivision

APPLICANT:  Amador & John G. Garcia
OWNERS:   Amador M. Garcia & Son, Inc.

ATTACHMENTS:   Resolution No. 13, Series 2024
Plat, letter of application

BACKGROUND
The Applicants, Amador and John Garcia, on behalf of the Owners, Amador M. Garcia & Son, Inc., are
proposing a two-lot minor subdivision of the existing .15 acre parcel of land located at 450 E. Main (the
“Parcel”).   The Parcel currently includes two separate buildings/businesses.  The request is to subdivide
the parcel so that each building is on its own, separate parcel.

The Parcels are bounded on the north, west and south by parcels located within the Central Business
District (CBD) zone and on the east by commercial highway (C) zoned land (City Market).

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

Development Standard CBD Zone Requirement Existing
Min. lot area (sq. ft.) 2,500 sq. ft. Lot 1A:  3,697.94 sq. ft.

Lot 2A:  3,002.06 sq. ft.

Min. front yard (ft.) 10’ 10’ approx.
Min. side yard (ft) 0’ 10’ approx.
Min. rear yard (ft) 7’ 9’ approx..
Max. lot coverage - n/a
Max. height 50’ No change



ISSUES

The City Council shall, in its action on the preliminary plat, consider the physical arrangement of the
subdivision, and determine the adequacy of street rights-of-way and alignment, and the compliance with
the Cortez thoroughfare plan, the City street standards, the existing street pattern in the area, and
compliance with all applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan. The Council shall also ascertain
that adequate easements for proposed or future utility service and surface drainage are provided, and
that the lot size and area are adequate to comply with the minimum requirements for the underlying
zone district and for the type of sanitary sewage disposal proposed.

An issue that Staff has identified with this subdivision it does not appear that easements have been
created to allows for access to all utilities.  While both parcels will continue to have direct access to
Harrison St., it is also recommended that cross easements for access and parking be provided.

Otherwise, the minor subdivision as submitted appears to meet all applicable development standards.
Conditions below will ensure adequate access, drainage, and all other aspects to promote the public
health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity, and general welfare.

AGENCY REVIEW

GIS Coordinator (Doug Roth)
GIS Coordinator - 
Both 17 N Harrison and 450 E main St already have separate water meters. Plat does not show City
fiber optic line. It is in a similar alignment as the O/H telecommunications cable. Both addresses a
good to continue to use on the buildings.

Cortez Sanitation District (Jim Webb)
The Sanitation District has no issues with this proposal.

City Engineer (Kevin Kissler)
I don't see an issue as long as the existing access patterns are unchanged, but if we wanted to go down
that rabbit hole I would suggest restricting access to highway 160 from the lower lot due to the volume
of traffic on 160 and adjacency to the traffic light

ALTERNATIVES

1. The Council can approve the Minor Subdivision Plat for 1st Amended Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block
7 F.R. Coffin’s Addition to the Town of Cortez, as submitted by Amador and John Garcia; or

2. The Council can deny the application for the Minor Subdivision and state its reasons; or
3. The Council can ask for more information and continue the application to a date certain; or
4. The Council can approve the Minor Subdivision for the 1st Amended Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block

7 F.R. Coffin’s Addition to the Town of Cortez and state any conditions it determines would be
necessary to ensure compliance with the Land Use Code.



RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Alternative “4” above, approve Resolution No. 13, Series 2024, a resolution
approving the Minor Subdivision for 1st Amended Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7 F.R. Coffin’s Addition
to the Town of Cortez, with the conditions stated in the Resolution.

If the Council so chooses to follow the recommendation of Staff, a possible motion could be the
following:

I move that Council approve Resolution No. 13, Series 2024, a resolution approving the 1st

Amended Plat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7 F.R. Coffin’s Addition to the Town of Cortez submitted
by John & Amador Garcia, located at 450 E. Main St, Cortez, Colorado, with the conditions
stated in the Resolution.

  



CITY OF CORTEZ
RESOLUTION NO. 13, SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR THE 1st

AMENDED PLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 7 F.R. COFFIN’S ADDITION TO THE
TOWN OF CORTEZ LOCATED IN SECTION 26, T.36 N., R.16 W., N.M.P.M., IN THE

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (CBD) ZONING DISTRICT IN CORTEZ,
COLORADO

WHEREAS, John and Amador Garcia (the “Applicants”), on behalf of the owner, Amador
Garcia and Son, Inc. (the “Owner”), have applied for approval of a minor subdivision plat to divide
a .15 acre tract into 2 lots located at 450 E. Main, in the Central Business District (CBD) zone
district in Cortez, Colorado (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, Land Use Code Section 6.11, Minor Subdivision Plats, indicates that the
owner or developer of a property may request a subdivision pursuant to all code requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the application and proposed plat for a two-lot
subdivision for the Property; and

WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony presented at the City Council’s July 9,
2024 meeting, Staff recommended certain conditions of approval to be considered by the City
Council; and

WHEREAS, it appears that all applicable requirements of the City of Cortez Land Use
Code for subdivision of the Property have been or can be met.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL:

THAT, this Resolution No. 13, Series 2024, contains the conditions of approval for the
subdivision of the Property; and

THAT, the plat and full application for the Property are hereby approved, subject to the
following conditions to ensure compliance with the standards in the City of Cortez Land Use Code
for a preliminary plat:

1. All requirements of utility providers, City departments, CDOT and affected districts must
be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.

2. Prior to recordation, the plat shall be revised to include easements for existing utilities and
shared parking areas.
 



AND THAT, the Applicant shall coordinate with City Staff to ensure that these conditions
are fully met.

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF JULY, 2024.

___________________________________
 Rachael B. Medina, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Linda Smith, City Clerk



1st AMENDED PLAT OF LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 7
F.R. COFFIN'S ADDITION TO THE TOWN OF CORTEZ

Creating Lots 1A and 2A





































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Jeremy PattonJeremy Patton  
Airport Director 

123 East Roger Smith Avenue 
Cortez, CO. 81321 

jpatton@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

JEREMY PATTON, AIRPORT DIRECTOR

Date:Date:
 

9 July 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

CDOT Aeronautics Discretionary Grant Award Resolution for matches of Parking LotCDOT Aeronautics Discretionary Grant Award Resolution for matches of Parking Lot
and Runway Rehabilitation Projectsand Runway Rehabilitation Projects
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
This Grant Resolution authored by CDOT Aeronautics outlines the Federal, State and Local matches of the
applicable funds for the Parking Lot Rehabilitation as well as the 2025 Runway Rehabilitation Project. This
Resolution ensures compliance with Federal and State Grant Assurances for the sponsor, the City of Cortez. Note:
this does not depict local funding sources already applied to the Parking Lot Project, i.e. ARPA funds are a
separate grant execution and reimbursement process already in-play. 

 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The Parking Lot Rehabilitation is currently in the construction phase, and the majority of the project, from design
and engineering to most of the construction, is funded by the City's existing ARPA grant. The areas of the
parking lot not planned for revenue -generation were eligible for Federal and State apportionment, hence the
combined agreement with a concurrent Airport Improvement Plan Capital project-the Runway 3/21 Rehabilitation
Project (Design). The Construction of the Runway will have a separate Grant Resolution given the timeline of
execution slated for the Spring of 2025. 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
A. Participate in Federally Funded Parking Lot and Access Road Rehabilitation
State Funding: $22,800.00   Up to 2.50%
Local Funding: $22,800.00   2.50%
Federal Funding: $866,400.00   95.00%
Total: $912,000.00

B. Participate in Federally Funded Runway 3/21 Rehabilitation Design
State Funding: $11,789.00  Up to 2.50%
Local Funding: $11,790.00  2.50%
Federal Funding: $448,000.00  95.00%
Total: $471,579.00

TOTALS
State: $34,589.00
Local: $34,590.00
Federal: $1,314,400.00



Combined Project Funding: $1,383,579.00

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve the CDOT Aeronautics Grant Award Resolution for these Airport
Improvement Projects and authorize the Mayor to sign the Resolution. 

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:  I move that City Council approve the 24-CEZ-
01 Grant Award Resolution and authorize the Mayor to sign the Resolution. 

AttachmentsAttachments
CDOT Grant Award Resolution



CDOT – Aeronautics Division 
Small Dollar Grant Award 

Grantee: City of Cortez 
CDAG #: 24-CEZ-01 

 Page 1 of  1 Aero SGA Version 06/2022  

 

 Colorado Division of Aeronautics 
Discretionary Aviation Grant Resolution 
 

RESOLUTION 
WHEREAS: 
The General Assembly of the State of Colorado declared in Title 43 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, Article 10, 
1991 in CRS §43-10-101 (the Act) “… that there exists a need to promote the safe operations and accessibility of 
general aviation in this state; that improvements to general aviation transportation facilities will promote 
diversified economic development across the state; and that accessibility to airport facilities for residents of this 
state is crucial in the event of a medical or other type of emergency…” 
The Act created the Colorado Aeronautical Board (“the Board”) to establish policy and procedures for distribution 
of monies in the Aviation Fund and created the Division of Aeronautics (“the Division”) to carry out the directives 
of the Board, including technical and planning assistance to airports and the administration of the state aviation 
system grant program. SEE CRS §43-10-103 and C.R.S. §43-10-105 and CRS §43-10-108.5 of the Act. 
Any eligible entity operating an FAA-designated public-use airport in the state may file an application for and be 
recipient of a grant to be used solely for aviation purposes. The Division is authorized to assist such airports and 
request assistance by means of a Resolution passed by the applicant’s duly-authorized governing body, which 
understands that all funds shall be used exclusively for aviation purposes and that it will comply with all grant 
procedures, grant assurances and requirements as defined in the Division’s Programs and Procedures Manual, 
(“the Manual”) and the Airport Sponsor Assurances for Colorado Discretionary Aviation Grant Funding (“Grant 
Assurances”) attached hereto as Exhibit B for the project detailed in the Discretionary Aviation Grant Application 
(“Application”) attached hereto as Exhibit A and in conjunction with CDOT’s Small Dollar Grant Award Terms 
and Conditions attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
The City of Cortez, as a duly authorized governing body of the grant applicant, hereby formally requests 
assistance from the Colorado Aeronautical Board and the Division of Aeronautics in the form of a state aviation 
system grant. The City of Cortez states that such grant shall be used solely for aviation purposes, as determined 
by the State, and as generally described in the Application. 
By signing this Grant Resolution, the applicant commits to keep open and accessible for public use all grant 
funded facilities, improvements and services for their useful life, as determined by the Division and stated in the 
Grant Assurances. 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED: 
That the City of Cortez hereby designates Jeremy Patton as the Project Director, as described in the Manual 
and authorizes the Project Director to act in all matters relating to the work project proposed in the Application, 
including execution of any amendments. 
FURTHER: 
The City of Cortez has appropriated or will otherwise make available in a timely manner all funds, if any, that 
are required to be provided by the applicant as shown on the Application. 
FINALLY: 
The City of Cortez hereby accepts all guidelines, procedures, standards, and requirements described in the 
Manual as applicable to the performance of the grant work and hereby approves this Grant Resloution, including 
all terms and conditions contained therein. 
 
 
By:         Date: ______________  
  
Print Name and Title:_____________________________________ 
 
   
ATTEST (if needed)  
 
By:          
  
Print Name and Title:_____________________________________ 



CDOT – Aeronautics Division 
Small Dollar Grant Award 

Grantee: City of Cortez 
CDAG #: 24-CEZ-01 

 Page 1 of  1 Aero SGA Version 06/2022  

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 Colorado Division of Aeronautics 
Discretionary Aviation Grant Application 
 

 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 

APPLICANT SPONSOR: 
City of Cortez 

AIRPORT:  
Cortez Municipal Airport 

IDENTIFIER:  
CEZ 

PROJECT DIRECTOR: Jeremy Patton 
MAILING ADDRESS: 
123 East Roger Smith Avenue 
 

EMAIL 
ADDRESS: jpatton@cortezco.gov 

PHONE 
NUMBER: (970) 565-7458 

 

GRANT NAME AND TERMS 
 

24-CEZ-01 
TERMS 

Execution Date: Expiration Date: 
June 30, 2027 

 

FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

Funding Source Funding Amount 
State Aviation Grant:      $34,589.00 
Local Cash:         $34,590.00 
Local In-Kind:          $0.00 
Federal Aviation Grant:    $1,314,400.00 
Total Project Funding:         $1,383,579.00 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE & BUDGET 
 

ELEMENT 
DESCRIPTION STATE FUNDING LOCAL FUNDING FEDERAL FUNDING TOTAL 

A. A - Participate in 
Federally Funded 
Parking Lot and 
Access Road 
Rehabilitation 

$22,800.00 Up to 
2.50% $22,800.00 2.50% $866,400.00 95.00% $912,000.00 

B. B - Participate in 
Federally Funded 
Runway 3/21 
Rehabilitation 
Design 

$11,789.00 Up to 
2.50% $11,790.00 2.50% $448,000.00 95.00% $471,579.00 

TOTALS $34,589.00  $34,590.00  $1,314,400.00  $1,383,579.00 
 



CDOT – Aeronautics Division 
Small Dollar Grant Award 

Grantee: City of Cortez 
CDAG #: 24-CEZ-01 

 Page 1 of  2 Aero SGA Version 06/2022  

 

EXHIBIT B, GRANT ASSURANCES 
Airport Sponsor Assurances for  

Colorado Discretionary Aviation Grant Funding 
Approved by CAB January 22, 2018 

I. APPLICABILITY 

a. These assurances shall be complied with by Airport Sponsors in the performance of all projects at 
airports that receive Colorado Department of Transportation – Division of Aeronautics (Division) 
Colorado Discretionary Aviation Grant (CDAG) funding for projects including but not limited to:  master 
planning, land acquisition, equipment acquisition or capital improvement projects (Project).  It is not the 
intent of these Assurances to expand existing Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Grant Assurances 
for airports included in the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems (NPIAS); as similar assurances 
already exist for acceptance of FAA funding.  

b. Upon acceptance of this grant agreement these assurances are incorporated in and become a part thereof. 

II. DURATION 

a. The terms, conditions and assurances of the grant agreement shall remain in full force and effect 
throughout the useful life of the Project as defined in Table 1 (Useful Life), or if the airport for which 
the Project is funded ceases to function as a public airport, for twenty (20) years from the date of Project 
completion, whichever period is greater.  However, there shall be no limit on the duration of the 
assurances with respect to real property acquired with CDAG Project funds. 

III. COMPLIANCE 

a. Should an Airport Sponsor be notified to be in non-compliance with any terms of this agreement, they 
may become ineligible for future Division funding until such non-compliance is cured. 

b. If any Project is not used for aviation purposes during its Useful Life, or if the airport for which the 
Project is funded ceases to function as a public airport, for twenty (20) years from the date of Project 
completion or at any time during the estimated useful life of the Project as defined in Table 1, whichever 
period is greater, the Airport Sponsor may be liable for repayment to the Division of any or all funds 
contributed by the Division under this agreement.  If the airport at which the Project is constructed is 
abandoned for any reason, the Division may in its discretion discharge the Airport Sponsor from any 
repayment obligation upon written request by the Airport Sponsor. 

IV. AIRPORT SPONSOR GRANT ASSURANCES 

1. Compatible Land Use.  Compatible land use and planning in and around airports benefits the state aviation 
system by providing opportunities for safe airport development, preservation of airport and aircraft 
operations, protection of airport approaches, reduced potential for litigation and compliance with appropriate 
airport design standards. The airport will take appropriate action, to the extent reasonable, to restrict the use 
of land adjacent to, in the immediate vicinity of, or on the airport to activities and purposes compatible with 
normal airport operations, including landing and takeoff of aircraft. 

2. On-Airport Hazard Removal and Mitigation.  The airport will take appropriate action to protect aircraft 
operations to/from the airport and ensure paths are adequately cleared and protected by removing, lowering, 
relocating, marking, or lighting or otherwise mitigating existing airport hazards and by preventing the 
establishment or creation of future airport hazards.   

3. Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of Navigable Airspace.  The airport shall comply with 14 CFR Part 
77 for all future airport development and anytime an existing airport development is altered.  

4. Operation and Maintenance.  In regards to Projects that receive Division funding, the airport sponsor 
certifies that it has the financial or other resources that may be necessary for the preventive maintenance, 
maintenance, repair and operation of such projects during their Useful Life.



CDOT – Aeronautics Division 
Small Dollar Grant Award 

Grantee: City of Cortez 
CDAG #: 24-CEZ-01 

 Page 2 of  2 Aero SGA Version 06/2022  

 

The airport and all facilities which are necessary to serve the aeronautical users of the airport shall be operated 
at all times in a safe and serviceable condition.  The airport will also have in effect arrangements for: 

a. Operating the airport's aeronautical facilities whenever required; 
b. Promptly marking and lighting hazards resulting from airport conditions, including temporary 

conditions; and  
c. Promptly notifying airmen of any condition affecting aeronautical use of the airport. 

5. Airport Revenues.  All revenues generated by the airport will be expended by it for the capital or operating 
costs of the airport, the local airport system, or other local facilities owned or operated by the owner or 
operator of the airport for aviation purposes. 

6. Airport Layout Plan (ALP).  Once accomplished and as otherwise may be required to develop, it will keep 
up-to-date a minimum of an ALP of the airport showing (1) boundaries of the airport and all proposed 
additions thereto, together with the boundaries of all offsite areas owned or controlled by the sponsor for 
airport purposes and proposed additions thereto; (2) the location and nature of all existing and proposed 
airport facilities and structures (such as runways, taxiways, aprons, terminal buildings, hangars and roads), 
including all proposed extensions and reductions of existing airport facilities; and (3) the location of all 
existing improvements thereon. 

7. Use for Aviation Purposes.  The Airport Sponsor shall not use runways, taxiways, aprons, seeded areas or 
any other appurtenance or facility constructed, repaired, renovated or maintained under the terms of this 
Agreement for activities other than aviation purposes unless otherwise exempted by the Division. 

TABLE 1 

Project Type Useful Life 

a.   All construction projects (unless listed separately below) 20 years 

b.  All equipment and vehicles 10 years 

c.   Pavement rehabilitation (not reconstruction, which is 20 years) 10 years 

d.   Asphalt seal coat, slurry seal, and joint sealing 3 years 

e.   Concrete joint replacement 7 years 

f.    Airfield lighting and signage 10 years 

g.    Navigational Aids 15 years 

h.   Buildings 40 years 

i.    Land Unlimited 

 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

MODEL SMALL DOLLAR GRANT AWARDS AND CONTENT 
This is a State Controller Contract, Grant, and Purchase Order Policy under the State Fiscal Rules. All Small Dollar 
Grant Awards shall use one of the approved models Small Dollar Grant Award or Grant Agreement forms described 
in Fiscal Rule 3-4 unless the State Agency or Institution of Higher Education (IHE) has obtained the prior written 
approval from the Office of the State Controller (OSC). 

 
 

1) Available Model Small Dollar Grant Awards. The following model Small Dollar Grant Awards may 
be used by State Agencies and IHEs without additional approval from the OSC: 

a. Financial System Generated Small Dollar Grant Awards. This model is the system-generated 
document resulting from a Colorado Operations Resource Engine (CORE) POGG1 encumbrance 
or through another approved state financial system, which also explicitly references a link to the 
State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions that are attached to this policy. 
This model does not include other documents with a similar or the same appearance as one of 
these documents that is not generated within the financial system 

b. Other Approved Forms. A State Agency or IHE, at the discretion of the State Agency’s or IHE’s 
Procurement Official or State Controller delegate, may request other approved forms from the 
OSC. 

c. Backup Forms. If CORE or the approved state financial system used by the State Agency or IHE 
is unavailable for an extended period of time when a Small Dollar Grant Award must be issued, 
the State Agency or IHE, with the prior approval of the OSC, may use a backup form with the same 
or substantially similar appearance as one of the documents described in §1)a. 

 
2) Modifications of Model Small Dollar Grant Awards. A State Agency or Institution of Higher Education 

issuing a Small Dollar Grant Award may not modify the State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award 
Terms and Conditions attached to this policy, including Addendum 1: Additional Terms & Conditions for 
Information Technology (“Addendum”), in any way without prior written approval of the OSC. 

a. Exception. The Office of Information Technology (OIT) may modify the provisions of Addendum 
for the State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Awards specifically issued by OIT with the prior written 
approval of the Procurement Official of OIT or authorized delegate, without obtaining additional 
approval from OSC. 

b. Unauthorized Modifications. Except as described in §2)a., the failure of a State Agency or IHE 
to obtain approval from the OSC prior to issuing a Small Dollar Grant Award with modified the 
State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions shall constitute a violation of 
Fiscal Rule 3-4, §§ 4.1.7. and 5.1. 

 
3) Small Dollar Grant Award Exhibits and References. All Small Dollar Grant Awards shall either 

include or specifically reference the State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions 
by hyperlink or, if modified in accordance with §2), attach the modified State of Colorado Small Dollar 
Grant Award Terms and Conditions and shall clarify on the Small Dollar Grant Award that the attached 
modified State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions shall govern the Small 
Dollar Grant Award in lieu of the State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions 
referenced by hyperlink. Small Dollar Grant Awards shall also include any additional exhibits, based on 
the nature of the work performed under the Small Dollar Grant Award, as required by any other state 

 
 
 

 
 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 1 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

and/or federal agency with authority over that type of work or by any entity providing funding for the Small Dollar 
Grant Award, including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. Additional information technology provisions required by OIT. 
b. Additional provisions required to comply with the Office of Management and Budget Uniform 

Guidance, or the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, or any other applicable 
federal terms and conditions. 

c. Any federally required attachments relating to confidential information, such as a Health 
Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Business Associate Addendum or a Federal 
Tax Information Exhibit. 

 
 

 
Robert Jaros, CPA, MBA, JD State 

Controller 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 2 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

State of Colorado Small Dollar Grant Award Terms and Conditions 
1. Offer/Acceptance. This Small Dollar Grant Award, together with these terms and conditions (including, if applicable, Addendum 1: Additional 
Terms and Conditions for Information Technology below), and any other attachments, exhibits, specifications, or appendices, whether attached or 
incorporated by reference (collectively the “Agreement”) shall represent the entire and exclusive agreement between the State of Colorado, by and 
through the agency identified on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award (“State”) and the Subrecipient identified on the face of the Small Dollar 
Grant Award (“Grantee”). If this Agreement refers to Grantee’s bid or proposal, this Agreement is an ACCEPTANCE of Grantee’s OFFER TO 
PERFORM in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If a bid or proposal is not referenced, this Agreement is an OFFER TO 
ENTER INTO AGREEMENT, subject to Grantee’s acceptance, demonstrated by Grantee’s beginning performance or written acceptance of this 
Agreement. Any COUNTER-OFFER automatically CANCELS this Agreement, unless a change order is issued by the State accepting a counter-
offer. Except as provided herein, the State shall not be responsible or liable for any Work performed prior to issuance of this Agreement. The 
State’s financial obligations to the Grantee are limited by the amount of Grant Funds awarded as reflected on the face of the Small Dollar Grant 
Award. 
2. Order of Precedence. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency within this Agreement, such conflict or inconsistency shall be resolved by 
giving preference to the documents in the following order of priority: (1) the Small dollar Grant Award document; (2) these terms and conditions 
(including, if applicable, Addendum 1 below); and (3) any attachments, exhibits, specifications, or appendices, whether attached or incorporated 
by reference. Notwithstanding the above, if this Agreement has been funded, in whole or in part, with a Federal Award, in the event of a conflict 
between the Federal Grant and this Agreement, the provisions of the Federal Grant shall control. Grantee shall comply with all applicable Federal 
provisions at all times during the term of this Agreement. Any terms and conditions included on Grantee’s forms or invoices not included in this 
Agreement are void. 
3. Changes. Once accepted in accordance with §1, this Agreement shall not be modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except in writing by 
the State and accepted by Grantee. 
4. Definitions. The following terms shall be construed and interpreted as follows: (a) “Award” means an award by a Recipient to a Subrecipient; 
(b) “Budget” means the budget for the Work described in this Agreement; (c) “Business Day” means any day in which the State is open and 
conducting business, but shall not include Saturday, Sunday or any day on which the State observes one of the holidays listed in CRS §24-11- 
101(1); (d) “UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code in CRS Title 4; (e) “Effective Date” means the date on which this Agreement is issued 
as shown on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award; (f) “Federal Award” means an award of federal financial assistance or a cost-reimbursement 
contract, , by a Federal Awarding Agency to the Recipient. “Federal Award” also means an agreement setting forth the terms and conditions of 
the Federal Award, which terms and conditions shall flow down to the Award unless such terms and conditions specifically indicate otherwise. The 
term does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program; (g) “Federal Awarding 
Agency” means a Federal agency providing a Federal Award to a Recipient; (h) “Grant Funds” means the funds that have been appropriated, 
designated, encumbered, or otherwise made available for payment by the State under this Agreement; (i) “Matching Funds” mean the funds 
provided by the Grantee to meet cost sharing requirements described in this Agreement; (j) “Recipient” means the State agency identified on the 
face of the Small Dollar Grant Award; (k) “Subcontractor” means third parties, if any, engaged by Grantee to aid in performance of the Work; (l) 
“Subrecipient” means a non-Federal entity that receives a sub-award from a Recipient to carry out part of a program, but does not include an 
individual that is a beneficiary of such program; (m) “Uniform Guidance” means the Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, identified as the 2 C.F.R. (Code of Federal Regulations) Part 200, 
commonly known as the “Super Circular,” which supersedes requirements from OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-89, A-102, and A- 
133, and the guidance in Circular a-50 on Single Audit Act follow-up; and (n) “Work” means the goods delivered or services, or both, performed 
pursuant to this Agreement and identified as Line Items on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award. 
5. Delivery. Grantee shall furnish the Work in strict accordance with the specifications and price set forth in this Agreement. The State shall 
have no liability to compensate Grantee for the performance of any Work not specifically set forth in the Agreement. 
6. Rights to Materials. [Not Applicable to Agreements issued either in whole in part for Information Technology, as defined in CRS § 
24-37.5-102(2); in which case Addendum 1 §2 applies in lieu of this section.] Unless specifically stated otherwise in this Agreement, all 
materials, including without limitation supplies, equipment, documents, content, information, or other material of any type, whether tangible or 
intangible (collectively “Materials”), furnished by the State to Grantee or delivered by Grantee to the State in performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement shall be the exclusive property the State. Grantee shall return or deliver all Materials to the State upon completion or termination 
of this Agreement. 
7. Grantee Records. Grantee shall make, keep, maintain, and allow inspection and monitoring by the State of a complete file of all records, 
documents, communications, notes and other written materials, electronic media files, and communications, pertaining in any manner to the Work 
(including, but not limited to the operation of programs) performed under this Agreement (collectively “Grantee Records”). Unless otherwise 
specified by the State, the Grantee shall retain Grantee Records for a period (the “Record Retention Period”) of three years following the date of 
submission to the State of the final expenditure report, or if this Award is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of each 
quarterly or annual report, respectively. If any litigation, claim, or audit related to this Award starts before expiration of the Record Retention Period, 
the Record Retention Period shall extend until all litigation, claims or audit finding have been resolved and final action taken by the State or Federal 
Awarding Agency. The Federal Awarding Agency, a cognizant agency for audit, oversight, or indirect costs, and the State, may notify Grantee in 
writing that the Record Retention Period shall be extended. For records for real property and equipment, the Record Retention Period shall extend 
three years following final disposition of such property. Grantee shall permit the State, the federal government, and any other duly authorized 
agent of a governmental agency to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and transcribe Grantee Records during the Record Retention Period. 
Grantee shall make Grantee Records available during normal business hours at Grantee’s office or place of business, or at other mutually agreed 
upon times or locations, upon no fewer than two Business Days’ notice from the State, unless the State determines that a shorter period of notice, 
or no notice, is necessary to protect the interests of the State. The State, in its discretion, may monitor Grantee’s performance of its obligations 
under this Agreement using procedures as determined by the State. The federal government and any other duly authorized agent of a 
governmental agency, in its discretion, Grantee shall allow the State to perform all monitoring required by the Uniform Guidance, based on the 
State’s risk analysis of Grantee and this Agreement, and the State shall have the right, in its discretion, to change its monitoring procedures and 
requirements at any time during the term of this Agreement. The State will monitor Grantee’s performance in a manner that does not unduly 
interfere with Grantee’s performance of the Work. Grantee shall promptly submit to the State a copy of any final audit report of an audit performed 

 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 3 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

on Grantee Records that relates to or affects this Agreement or the Work, whether the audit is conducted by Grantee, a State agency or the State’s 
authorized representative, or a third party. If applicable, the Grantee may be required to perform a single audit under 2 CFR 200.501, et seq. 
Grantee shall submit a copy of the results of that audit to the State within the same timelines as the submission to the federal government. 
8. Reporting. If Grantee is served with a pleading or other document in connection with an action before a court or other administrative decision 
making body, and such pleading or document relates to this Agreement or may affect Grantee’s ability to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement, Grantee shall, within 10 days after being served, notify the State of such action and deliver copies of such pleading or document to 
the State. Grantee shall disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the State and the Federal Awarding Agency, all violations of federal or State 
criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the Award. The State or the Federal Awarding Agency may impose 
any penalties for noncompliance allowed under 2 CFR Part 180 and 31 U.S.C. 3321, which may include, without limitation, suspension or 
debarment. 
9. Conflicts of Interest. Grantee acknowledges that with respect to this Agreement, even the appearance of a conflict of interest is harmful to 
the State’s interests. Absent the State’s prior written approval, Grantee shall refrain from any practices, activities, or relationships that reasonably 
may appear to be in conflict with the full performance of Grantee’s obligations to the State under this Agreement. If a conflict or appearance of a 
conflict of interest exists, or if Grantee is uncertain as to such, Grantee shall submit to the State a disclosure statement setting forth the relevant 
details for the State’s consideration. Failure to promptly submit a disclosure statement or to follow the State’s direction in regard to the actual or 
apparent conflict constitutes a breach of this Agreement. Grantee certifies that to their knowledge, no employee of the State has any personal or 
beneficial interest whatsoever in the service or property described in this Agreement. Grantee has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, 
direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Grantee’s Services and Grantee shall not employ any person 
having such known interests. 
10. Taxes. The State is exempt from federal excise taxes and from State and local sales and use taxes. The State shall not be liable for the 
payment of any excise, sales, of use taxes imposed on Grantee. A tax exemption certificate will be made available upon Grantee’s request. 
Grantee shall be solely responsible for any exemptions from the collection of excise, sales or use taxes that Grantee may wish to have in place in 
connection with this Agreement. 
11. Payment. Payments to Grantee are limited to the unpaid, obligated balance of the Grant Funds. The State shall not pay Grantee any amount 
under this Agreement that exceeds the Document Total shown on the face of the Small Dollar Grant Award. The State shall pay Grantee in the 
amounts and in accordance with the schedule and other conditions set forth in this Agreement. Grantee shall initiate payment requests by invoice 
to the State, in a form and manner approved by the State. The State shall pay Grantee for all amounts due within 45 days after receipt of an 
Awarding Agency’s approved invoicing request, or in instances of reimbursement grant programs a request for reimbursement, compliant with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and, if applicable Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) of amount requested. 
Amounts not paid by the State within 45 days of the State’s acceptance of the invoice shall bear interest on the unpaid balance beginning on the 
45th day at the rate set forth in CRS §24-30-202(24) until paid in full. Interest shall not accrue if a good faith dispute exists as to the State’s 
obligation to pay all or a portion of the amount due. Grantee shall invoice the State separately for interest on delinquent amounts due, referencing 
the delinquent payment, number of day’s interest to be paid, and applicable interest rate. The acceptance of an invoice shall not constitute 
acceptance of any Work performed under this Agreement. Except as specifically agreed in this Agreement, Grantee shall be solely responsible 
for all costs, expenses, and other charges it incurs in connection with its performance under this Grantee. 
12. Term. The parties’ respective performances under this Agreement shall commence on the “Service From” date identified on the face of the 
Small Dollar Grant Award, unless otherwise specified, and shall terminate on the “Service To” date identified on the face of the Small Dollar Grant 
Award unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
13. Payment Disputes. If Grantee disputes any calculation, determination or amount of any payment, Grantee shall notify the State in writing of 
its dispute within 30 days following the earlier to occur of Grantee’s receipt of the payment or notification of the determination or calculation of the 
payment by the State. The State will review the information presented by Grantee and may make changes to its determination based on this 
review. The calculation, determination or payment amount that results from the State’s review shall not be subject to additional dispute under this 
subsection. No payment subject to a dispute under this subsection shall be due until after the State has concluded its review, and the State shall 
not pay any interest on any amount during the period it is subject to dispute under this subsection. 
14. Matching Funds. Grantee shall provide Matching Funds, if required by this Agreement. If permitted under the terms of the grant and per this 
Agreement, Grantee may be permitted to provide Matching Funds prior to or during the course of the project or the match will be an in-kind match. 
Grantee shall report to the State regarding the status of such funds upon request. Grantee’s obligation to pay all or any part of any Matching 
Funds, whether direct or contingent, only extend to funds duly and lawfully appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by the authorized 
representatives of Grantee and paid into Grantee’s treasury or bank account. Grantee represents to the State that the amount designated 
“Grantee’s Matching Funds” pursuant to this Agreement, has been legally appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by its authorized 
representatives and paid into its treasury or bank account. Grantee does not by this Agreement irrevocably pledge present cash reserves for 
payments in future fiscal years, and this Agreement is not intended to create a multiple-fiscal year debt of Grantee. Grantee shall not pay or be 
liable for any claimed interest, late charges, fees, taxes or penalties of any nature, except as required by Grantee’s laws or policies. 
15. Reimbursement of Grantee Costs. If applicable, the State shall reimburse Grantee’s allowable costs, not exceeding the maximum total 
amount described in this Agreement for all allowable costs described in the grant except that Grantee may adjust the amounts between each line 
item of the Budget without formal modification to this Agreement as long as the Grantee provides notice to, and received approval from the State 
of the change, the change does not modify the total maximum amount of this Agreement, and the change does not modify any requirements of 
the Work. If applicable, the State shall reimburse Grantee for the properly documented allowable costs related to the Work after review and 
approval thereof, subject to the provisions of this Agreement. However, any costs incurred by Grantee prior to the Effective Date shall not be 
reimbursed absent specific allowance of pre-award costs. Grantee’s costs for Work performed after the “Service To” date identified on the face of 
the Small Dollar Grant Award, or after any phase performance period end date for a respective phase of the Work, shall not be reimbursable. The 
State shall only reimburse allowable costs described in this Agreement and shown in the Budget if those costs are (a) reasonable and necessary 
to accomplish the Work, and (b) equal to the actual net cost to Grantee (i.e. the price paid minus any items of value received by Grantee that 
reduce the costs actually incurred). 
16. Close-Out. Grantee shall close out this Award within 45 days after the “Service To” date identified on the face of the Small Dollar Grant 
Award, including any modifications. To complete close-out, Grantee shall submit to the State all deliverables (including documentation) as defined 

 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 4 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

in this Agreement and Grantee’s final reimbursement request or invoice. In accordance with the Agreement, the State may withhold a percentage 
of allowable costs until all final documentation has been submitted and accepted by the State as substantially complete. 
17. Assignment. Grantee’s rights and obligations under this Agreement may not be transferred or assigned without the prior, written consent of 
the State and execution of a new agreement. Any attempt at assignment or transfer without such consent and new agreement shall be void. Any 
assignment or transfer of Grantee’s rights and obligations approved by the State shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 
18. Subcontracts. Grantee shall not enter into any subcontract in connection with its obligations under this Agreement without the prior, written 
approval of the State. Grantee shall submit to the State a copy of each subcontract upon request by the State. All subcontracts entered into by 
Grantee in connection with this Agreement shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations, shall provide that they are 
governed by the laws of the State of Colorado, and shall be subject to all provisions of this Agreement. 
19. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other 
provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations in 
accordance with the intent of the Agreement. 
20. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms. Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obligation on a party after termination or expiration 
of the Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other party. 
21. Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the parties’ respective successors and assigns, this Agreement does not and is not intended to confer 
any rights or remedies upon any person or entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder 
are reserved solely to the parties. Any services or benefits which third parties receive as a result of this Agreement are incidental to the Agreement, 
and do not create any rights for such third parties. 
22. Waiver. A party’s failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, 
shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of such 
right, power, or privilege. 
23. Indemnification. [Not Applicable to Inter-governmental agreements] Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State, its 
employees, agents and assignees (the “Indemnified Parties”), against any and all costs, expenses, claims, damages, liabilities, court awards and 
other amounts (including attorneys’ fees and related costs) incurred by any of the Indemnified Parties in relation to any act or omission by Grantee, 
or its employees, agents, Subcontractors, or assignees in connection with this Agreement. This shall include, without limitation, any and all costs, 
expenses, claims, damages, liabilities, court awards and other amounts incurred by the Indemnified Parties in relation to any claim that any work 
infringes a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret, or any other intellectual property right or any claim for loss or improper disclosure of any 
confidential information or personally identifiable information. If Grantee is a public agency prohibited by applicable law from indemnifying any 
party, then this section shall not apply. 
24. Notice. All notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered to the contacts for each party listed on the face of 
the Small Dollar Grant Award. Either party may change its contact or contact information by notice submitted in accordance with this section 
without a formal modification to this Agreement. 
25. Insurance. Except as otherwise specifically stated in this Agreement or any attachment or exhibit to this Agreement, Grantee shall obtain 
and maintain insurance as specified in this section at all times during the term of the Agreement: (a) workers’ compensation insurance as required 
by state statute, and employers’ liability insurance covering all Grantee employees acting within the course and scope of their employment, (b) 
Commercial general liability insurance written on an Insurance Services Office occurrence form, covering premises operations, fire damage, 
independent contractors, products and completed operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury, and advertising liability with minimum 
limits as follows: $1,000,000 each occurrence; $1,000,000 general aggregate; $1,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate; and 
$50,000 any one fire, and (c) Automobile liability insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned autos) with a minimum limit 
of $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit. If Grantee will or may have access to any protected information, then Grantee shall also obtain 
and maintain insurance covering loss and disclosure of protected information and claims based on alleged violations of privacy right through 
improper use and disclosure of protected information with limits of $1,000,000 each occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate at all times 
during the term of the Small Dollar Grant Award. Additional insurance may be required as provided elsewhere in this Agreement or any attachment 
or exhibit to this Agreement. All insurance policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by insurance companies with an AM Best rating of 
A-VIII or better. If Grantee is a public agency within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, then this section shall not apply and 
Grantee shall instead comply with the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 
26. Termination Prior to Grantee Acceptance. If Grantee has not begun performance under this Agreement, the State may cancel this 
Agreement by providing written notice to the Grantee. 
27. Termination for Cause. If Grantee refuses or fails to timely and properly perform any of its obligations under this Agreement with such 
diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement, the State may notify Grantee in writing of non-performance and, 
if not corrected by Grantee within the time specified in the notice, terminate Grantee’s right to proceed with the Agreement or such part thereof as 
to which there has been delay or a failure. Grantee shall continue performance of this Agreement to the extent not terminated. Grantee shall be 
liable for excess costs incurred by the State in procuring similar Work and the State may withhold such amounts, as the State deems necessary. 
If after rejection, revocation, or other termination of Grantee’s right to proceed under the Colorado Uniform Commercial Code (CUCC) or this 
clause, the State determines for any reason that Grantee was not in default or the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the State and 
Grantee shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to termination under §28. 
28. Termination in Public Interest. The State is entering into this Agreement for the purpose of carrying out the public interest of the State, as 
determined by its Governor, General Assembly, Courts, or Federal Awarding Agency. If this Agreement ceases to further the public interest of the 
State as determined by its Governor, General Assembly, Courts, or Federal Awarding Agency, the State, in its sole discretion, may terminate this 
Agreement in whole or in part and such termination shall not be deemed to be a breach of the State’s obligations hereunder. This section shall not 
apply to a termination for cause, which shall be governed by §27. A determination that this Small Dollar Grant Award should be terminated in the 
public interest shall not be equivalent to a State right to terminate for convenience. The State shall give written notice of termination to Grantee 
specifying the part of the Agreement terminated and when termination becomes effective. Upon receipt of notice of termination, Grantee shall not 
incur further obligations except as necessary to mitigate costs of performance. The State shall pay the Agreement price or rate for Work performed 

 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 5 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

and accepted by State prior to the effective date of the notice of termination. The State’s termination liability under this section shall not exceed 
the total Agreement price. 
29. Termination for Funds Availability. The State is prohibited by law from making commitments beyond the term of the current State Fiscal 
Year. Payment to Grantee beyond the current State Fiscal Year is contingent on the appropriation and continuing availability of Grant Funds in 
any subsequent year (as provided in the Colorado Special Provisions). If federal funds or funds from any other non-State funds constitute all or 
some of the Grant Funds, the State’s obligation to pay Grantee shall be contingent upon such non-State funding continuing to be made available 
for payment. Payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement shall be made only from Grant Funds, and the State’s liability for such payments 
shall be limited to the amount remaining of such Grant Funds. If State, federal or other funds are not appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable 
to fund this Agreement, the State may, upon written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without incurring further liability. The 
State shall, however, remain obligated to pay for Work performed and accepted prior to the effective date of notice of termination, and this 
termination shall otherwise be treated as if this Agreement were terminated in the public interest as described in §28. 
30. Grantee’s Termination Under Federal Requirements. If the Grant Funds include any federal funds, then Grantee may request termination 
of this Grant by sending notice to the State, or to the Federal Awarding Agency with a copy to the State, which includes the reasons for the 
termination and the effective date of the termination. If this Grant is terminated in this manner, then Grantee shall return any advanced payments 
made for Work that will not be performed prior to the effective date of the termination. 
31. Governmental Immunity. Liability for claims for injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the State, its departments, 
boards, commissions committees, bureaus, offices, employees and officials shall be controlled and limited by the provisions of the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101, et seq., the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. Pt. VI, Ch. 171 and 28 U.S.C. 1346(b), and the 
State’s risk management statutes, CRS §§24-30-1501, et seq. No term or condition of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, 
express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, contained in these statutes. 
32. Grant Recipient. Grantee shall perform its duties hereunder as a grant recipient and not as an employee. Neither Grantee nor any agent or 
employee of Grantee shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the State. Grantee shall not have authorization, express or implied, to bind 
the State to any agreement, liability or understanding, except as expressly set forth herein. Grantee and its employees and agents are not 
entitled to unemployment insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not pay for or otherwise 
provide such coverage for Grantee or any of its agents or employees. Grantee shall pay when due all applicable employment taxes and 
income taxes and local head taxes incurred pursuant to this Agreement. Grantee shall (a) provide and keep in force workers' 
compensation and unemployment compensation insurance in the amounts required by law, (b) provide proof thereof when requested 
by the State, and (c) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its employees and agents. 
33. Compliance with Law. Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in effect or hereafter 
established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair employment practices. 
34. Choice of Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. [Not Applicable to Inter-governmental agreements] Colorado law, and rules and regulations 
issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied in the interpretation, execution, and enforcement of this Agreement. Any provision included or 
incorporated herein by reference which conflicts with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. All suits or actions related to this 
Agreement shall be filed and proceedings held in the State of Colorado and exclusive venue shall be in the City and County of Denver. Any 
provision incorporated herein by reference which purports to negate this or any other provision in this Agreement in whole or in part shall not be 
valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of complaint, defense, or otherwise. Any provision rendered null and void by 
the operation of this provision or for any other reason shall not invalidate the remainder of this Agreement, to the extent capable of execution. 
Grantee shall exhaust administrative remedies in CRS §24-109-106, prior to commencing any judicial action against the State regardless of 
whether the Colorado Procurement Code applies to this Agreement. 
35. Prohibited Terms. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any provision of CRS §24-106-109. Any term included in this 
Agreement that requires the State to indemnify or hold Grantee harmless; requires the State to agree to binding arbitration; limits Grantee’s liability 
for damages resulting from death, bodily injury, or damage to tangible property; or that conflicts with that statute in any way shall be void ab initio. 
36. Public Contracts for Services. [Not Applicable to offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory services, fund 
management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental grant agreements, or information technology services or products and 
services] Grantee certifies, warrants, and agrees that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under 
this Agreement and will confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United States to perform 
work under this Agreement, through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department program established pursuant to CRS §8-17.5- 
102(5)(c), Grantee shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Agreement or enter into a contract or 
agreement with a Subcontractor that fails to certify to Grantee that the Subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 
perform work under this Agreement. Grantee shall (a) not use E-Verify Program or Department program procedures to undertake pre- employment 
screening of job applicants during performance of this Agreement, (b) notify Subcontractor and the State within three days if Grantee has actual 
knowledge that Subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien for work under this Agreement, (c) terminate the subcontract if 
Subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three days of receiving notice, and (d) comply with reasonable 
requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to CRS §8-17.5-102(5), by the Colorado Department of Labor and 
Employment. If Grantee participates in the Department program, Grantee shall deliver to the State a written, notarized affirmation that Grantee has 
examined the legal work status of such employee, and shall comply with all of the other requirements of the Department program. If Grantee fails 
to comply with any requirement of this provision or CRS §8-17.5-101 et seq., the State may terminate this Agreement for breach and, if so 
terminated, Grantee shall be liable for damages. 
37. Public Contracts with Natural Persons. Grantee, if a natural person 18 years of age or older, hereby swears and affirms under penalty of 
perjury that the person (a) is a citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal law, (b) shall comply with the provisions 
of CRS §24-76.5-101 et seq., and (c) has produced a form of identification required by CRS §24-76.5-103 prior to the date Grantee begins Work 
under terms of the Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 6 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 1: 
Additional Terms & Conditions for Information Technology 

IF ANY PART OF THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS AGREEMENT IS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY, AS 
DEFINED IN CRS § 24-37.5-102 (2), THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ALSO APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

A. Definitions. The following terms shall be construed and interpreted as follows: (a) “CJI” means criminal justice information collected by 
criminal justice agencies needed for the performance of their authorized functions, including, without limitation, all information defined as criminal 
justice information by the U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Criminal Justice Information Services Security Policy, as 
amended, and all Criminal Justice Records as defined under CRS §24-72-302; (b) “Incident” means any accidental or deliberate event that results 
in or constitutes an imminent threat of the unauthorized access, loss, disclosure, modification, disruption, or destruction of any communications or 
information resources of the State, pursuant to CRS §§24-37.5-401 et seq.; (c) “PCI” means payment card information including any data related 
to credit card holders’ names, credit card numbers, or the other credit card information as may be protected by state or federal law; (d) “PHI” 
means any protected health information, including, without limitation any information whether oral or recorded in any form or medium that relates 
to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future 
payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to 
believe the information can be used to identify the individual including, without limitation, any information defined as Individually Identifiable Health 
Information by the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act; (e) “PII” means personally identifiable information including, without 
limitation, any information maintained by the State about an individual that can be used to distinguish or trace an individual‘s identity, such as 
name, social security number, date and place of birth, mother’s maiden name, or biometric records, including, without limitation, all information 
defined as personally identifiable information in CRS §24-72-501; (f) “State Confidential Information” means any and all State Records not 
subject to disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act and includes, without limitation, PII, PHI, PCI, Tax Information, CJI, and State 
personnel records not subject to disclosure under the Colorado Open Records Act, (g) “State Fiscal Rules” means those fiscal rules promulgated 
by the Colorado State Controller pursuant to CRS §24-30-202(13)(a); (h) “State Fiscal Year” means a 12 month period beginning on July 1 of 
each calendar year and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year; (i) “State Records” means any and all State data, information, and 
records, regardless of physical form; (j) “Tax Information” means federal and State of Colorado tax information including, without limitation, federal 
and State tax returns, return information, and such other tax-related information as may be protected by federal and State law and regulation, 
including, without limitation all information defined as federal tax information in Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075; and (k) “Work Product” 
means the tangible and intangible results of the delivery of goods and performance of services, whether finished or unfinished, including drafts. 
Work Product includes, but is not limited to, documents, text, software (including source code), research, reports, proposals, specifications, plans, 
notes, studies, data, images, photographs, negatives, pictures, drawings, designs, models, surveys, maps, materials, ideas, concepts, know-how, 
information, and any other results of the Work, but does not include any material that was developed prior to the Effective Date that is used, without 
modification, in the performance of the Work. 
B. Intellectual Property. Except to the extent specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement, any State information, including without 
limitation pre-existing State software, research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other documents, drawings, models, materials; 
or Work Product prepared by Grantee in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the State 
(collectively, “State Materials”). All State Materials shall be delivered to the State by Grantee upon completion or termination of this Agreement. 
The State’s exclusive rights in any Work Product prepared by Grantee shall include, but not be limited to, the right to copy, publish, display, transfer, 
and prepare derivative works. Grantee shall not use, willingly allow, cause or permit any State Materials to be used for any purpose other than the 
performance of Grantee’s obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the State. The State shall maintain complete and accurate 
records relating to (a) its use of all Grantee and third party software licenses and rights to use any Grantee or third party software granted under this 
Agreement and its attachments to which the State is a party and (b) all amounts payable to Grantee pursuant to this Agreement and its attachments 
and the State’s obligations under this Agreement or any amounts payable to Grantee in relation to this Agreement, which records shall contain 
sufficient information to permit Grantee to confirm the State’s compliance with the use restrictions and payment obligations under this Agreement 
or to any third party use restrictions to which the State is a party. Grantee retains the exclusive rights, title and ownership to any and all pre-existing 
materials owned or licensed to Grantee including, but not limited to all pre-existing software, licensed products, associated source code, machine 
code, text images, audio, video, and third party materials, delivered by Grantee under the Agreement, whether incorporated in a deliverable or 
necessary to use a deliverable (collectively, “Grantee Property”). Grantee Property shall be licensed to the State as set forth in a State-approved 
license agreement (a) entered into as exhibits or attachments to this Agreement, (b) obtained by the State from the applicable third party Grantee, 
or (c) in the case of open source software, the license terms set forth in the applicable open source license agreement. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary herein, the State shall not be subject to any provision incorporated in any exhibit or attachment attached hereto, any provision 
incorporated in any terms and conditions appearing on any website, any provision incorporated into any click through or online agreements, or 
any provision incorporated into any other document or agreement between the parties that (a) requires the State or the State to indemnify Grantee 
or any other party, (b) is in violation of State laws, regulations, rules, State Fiscal Rules, policies, or other State requirements as deemed solely 
by the State, or (c) is contrary to this Agreement. 
C. Information Confidentiality. Grantee shall keep confidential, and cause all Subcontractors to keep confidential, all State Records, unless 
those State Records are publicly available. Grantee shall not, without prior written approval of the State, use, publish, copy, disclose to any third 
party, or permit the use by any third party of any State Records, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, permitted by law, or approved in 
writing by the State. If Grantee will or may have access to any State Confidential Information or any other protected information, Grantee shall 
provide for the security of all State Confidential Information in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, policies, publications, and guidelines. 
Grantee shall comply with all Colorado Office of Information Security (“OIS”) policies and procedures which OIS has issued pursuant to CRS §§24- 
37.5-401 through 406 and 8 CCR §1501-5 and posted at http://oit.state.co.us/ois, all information security and privacy obligations imposed by any 
federal, state, or local statute or regulation, or by any industry standards or guidelines, as applicable based on the classification of the data relevant 
to Grantee’s performance under this Agreement. Such obligations may arise from: Health Information Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA); 
IRS Publication 1075; Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI-DSS); FBI Criminal Justice Information Service Security Addendum; 
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Minimum Acceptable Risk Standards for Exchanges; and Electronic Information Exchange 

 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 7 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 

http://oit.state.co.us/ois


EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

Security Requirements and Procedures for State and Local Agencies Exchanging Electronic Information with The Social Security Administration. 
Grantee shall immediately forward any request or demand for State Records to the State’s principal representative. 
D. Other Entity Access and Nondisclosure Agreements. Grantee may provide State Records to its agents, employees, assigns and 
Subcontractors as necessary to perform the work, but shall restrict access to State Confidential Information to those agents, employees, assigns, 
and Subcontractors who require access to perform their obligations under this Agreement. Grantee shall ensure all such agents, employees, 
assigns, and Subcontractors sign agreements containing nondisclosure provisions at least as protective as those in this Agreement, and that the 
nondisclosure provisions are in force at all times the agent, employee, assign, or Subcontractors has access to any State Confidential Information. 
Grantee shall provide copies of those signed nondisclosure provisions to the State upon execution of the nondisclosure provisions if requested by 
the State. 
E. Use, Security, and Retention. Grantee shall use, hold, and maintain State Confidential Information in compliance with any and all applicable 
laws and regulations only in facilities located within the United States, and shall maintain a secure environment that ensures confidentiality of all 
State Confidential Information. Grantee shall provide the State with access, subject to Grantee’s reasonable security requirements, for purposes 
of inspecting and monitoring access and use of State Confidential Information and evaluating security control effectiveness. Upon the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement, Grantee shall return State Records provided to Grantee or destroy such State Records and certify to the State 
that it has done so, as directed by the State. If Grantee is prevented by law or regulation from returning or destroying State Confidential Information, 
Grantee warrants it will guarantee the confidentiality of, and cease to use, such State Confidential Information. 
F. Incident Notice and Remediation. If Grantee becomes aware of any Incident, it shall notify the State immediately and cooperate with the 
State regarding recovery, remediation, and the necessity to involve law enforcement, as determined by the State. Unless Grantee can establish 
none of Grantee or any of its agents, employees, assigns or Subcontractors are the cause or source of the Incident, Grantee shall be responsible 
for the cost of notifying each person who may have been impacted by the Incident. After an Incident, Grantee shall take steps to reduce the risk 
of incurring a similar type of Incident in the future as directed by the State, which may include, but is not limited to, developing and implementing 
a remediation plan that is approved by the State at no additional cost to the State. The State may adjust or direct modifications to this plan, in its 
sole discretion and Grantee shall make all modifications as directed by the State. If Grantee cannot produce its analysis and plan within the allotted 
time, the State, in its sole discretion, may perform such analysis and produce a remediation plan, and Grantee shall reimburse the State for the 
reasonable actual costs thereof. 
G. Data Protection and Handling. Grantee shall ensure that all State Records and Work Product in the possession of Grantee or any 
Subcontractors are protected and handled in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement at all times. Upon request by the State made 
any time prior to 60 days following the termination of this Agreement for any reason, whether or not this Agreement is expiring or terminating, 
Grantee shall make available to the State a complete and secure download file of all data that is encrypted and appropriately authenticated. This 
download file shall be made available to the State within 10 Business Days following the State’s request, and shall contain, without limitation, all 
State Records, Work Product, and any other information belonging to the State. Upon the termination of Grantee’s services under this Agreement, 
Grantee shall, as directed by the State, return all State Records provided by the State to Grantee, and the copies thereof, to the State or destroy 
all such State Records and certify to the State that it has done so. If legal obligations imposed upon Grantee prevent Grantee from returning or 
destroying all or part of the State Records provided by the State, Grantee shall guarantee the confidentiality of all State Records in Grantee’s 
possession and will not actively process such data. The State retains the right to use the established operational services to access and retrieve 
State Records stored on Grantee’s infrastructure at its sole discretion and at any time. 
H. Compliance. If applicable, Grantee shall review, on a semi-annual basis, all OIS policies and procedures which OIS has promulgated 
pursuant to CRS §§ 24-37.5-401 through 406 and 8 CCR § 1501-5 and posted at http://oit.state.co.us/ois, to ensure compliance with the standards 
and guidelines published therein. Grantee shall cooperate, and shall cause its Subcontractors to cooperate, with the performance of security audit 
and penetration tests by OIS or its designee. 
I. Safeguarding PII. If Grantee or any of its Subcontractors will or may receive PII under this Agreement, Grantee shall provide for the security 
of such PII, in a manner and form acceptable to the State, including, without limitation, all State requirements relating to non-disclosure, use of 
appropriate technology, security practices, computer access security, data access security, data storage encryption, data transmission encryption, 
security inspections, and audits. Grantee shall take full responsibility for the security of all PII in its possession or in the possession of its 
Subcontractors, and shall hold the State harmless for any damages or liabilities resulting from the unauthorized disclosure or loss thereof. Grantee 
shall be a “Third-Party Service Provider” as defined in CRS §24-73-103(1)(i) and shall maintain security procedures and practices consistent with 
CRS §§24-73-101 et seq. 
J. Software Piracy Prohibition. The State or other public funds payable under this Agreement shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, 
or maintenance of computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. Grantee hereby certifies and warrants 
that, during the term of this Agreement and any extensions, Grantee has and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent 
such improper use of public funds. If the State determines that Grantee is in violation of this provision, the State may exercise any remedy available 
at law or in equity or under this Agreement, including, without limitation, immediate termination of this Agreement and any remedy consistent with 
federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. 
K. Information Technology. To the extent that Grantee provides physical or logical storage of State Records; Grantee creates, uses, 
processes, discloses, transmits, or disposes of State Records; or Grantee is otherwise given physical or logical access to State Records in order 
to perform Grantee’s obligations under this Agreement, the following terms shall apply. Grantee shall, and shall cause its Subcontractors, to: 
Provide physical and logical protection for all hardware, software, applications, and data that meets or exceeds industry standards and the 
requirements of this Agreement; Maintain network, system, and application security, which includes, but is not limited to, network firewalls, intrusion 
detection (host and network), annual security testing, and improvements or enhancements consistent with evolving industry standards; Comply 
with State and federal rules and regulations related to overall security, privacy, confidentiality, integrity, availability, and auditing; Provide that 
security is not compromised by unauthorized access to workspaces, computers, networks, software, databases, or other physical or electronic 
environments; Promptly report all Incidents, including Incidents that do not result in unauthorized disclosure or loss of data integrity, to a designated 
representative of the OIS; Comply with all rules, policies, procedures, and standards issued by the Governor’s Office of Information Technology 
(OIT), including project lifecycle methodology and governance, technical standards, documentation, and other requirements posted at 
www.oit.state.co.us/about/policies. Grantee shall not allow remote access to State Records from outside the United States, including access by 

 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 8 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 

http://oit.state.co.us/ois
http://www.oit.state.co.us/about/policies


EXHIBIT C 
 

 

 
 

Grantee’s employees or agents, without the prior express written consent of OIS. Grantee shall communicate any request regarding non-U.S. 
access to State Records to the State. The State, acting by and through OIS, shall have sole discretion to grant or deny any such request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
 

Page 9 of 9 
Effective Date: 7/1/2019 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Brian PeckinsBrian Peckins 

Director of Public Works 
110 West Progress Circle 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
bpeckins@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

BRIAN PECKINS, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

Date:Date:
 

July 9, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Contract for Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Roadway Funding andContract for Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) Roadway Funding and
City Transportation EngineeringCity Transportation Engineering
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
City staff prepared a request for proposal (RFP) for engineering services. The project was advertised on BidNet, in
the Cortez Journal, and on the City's website. Over 400 potential vendors saw the listing, of which 84
downloaded the RFP. Three firms had follow-up questions and two responsive submissions meeting schedule
and budget requirements were received. The proposals were evaluated by a panel of City staff, summarized
below:
 
Engineer's Budget $140,000.00 Within Budget Within Schedule Avg. Score
Bohannan-Huston, Inc. $139,675.00 Yes Yes 73.33
Jones & DeMille Engineering, Inc.
 $139,868.00 Yes Yes 84.67

City staff scored Jones & DeMille Engineering, Inc., higher than Bohannon-Huston, Inc., due to its significantly
clearer work strategy and superior proposed data collection methods. Jones & DeMille also proposed additional
services that will further benefit the scope of work as defined in the RFP.

Council will consider awarding a contract for professional engineering services. These services will include
preparing scope and cost estimates for the CDOT- long-range call for projects at the August 8th Transportation
Planning Region (TPR) meeting. This will allow the City to provide project suggestions to CDOT for funding
consideration. The selected firm will also perform transportation engineering for City streets and sidewalks in the
form of a Transportation Master Plan (TMP). This work will guide project selection and project design for Public
Works to improve the City's transportation network in line with community goals, independent from state and
federal direction.
 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
CDOT's long-range planning cycle allows a call for projects once every five years. Projects admitted in the current
cycle generally receive funding for construction by 2050. Once projects are accepted, project timelines can be
accelerated with additional state and federal funding. The City is currently pursuing grants to assist improvements
on CDOT highways within the City limits to increase safety and efficiency for the traveling public. Scopes
of work and cost estimates must first be accepted in the CDOT long-range planning cycle. City staff suggests
contracting an engineering consulting firm to provide these deliverables in time enough to present to CDOT for
the 2024 call for projects.

Public Works staff also suggests the creation of a TMP that will include prioritized transportation infrastructure
recommendations intended to improve safety, functionality, and reduce traffic delays. It will also serve as



guidance in project design and selection for transportation improvements. The expertise of a firm familiar with
small rural communities is critical in order to provide affordable and effective maintenance and improvement
programs for transportation infrastructure, without compromising community values. The documents produced
by this firm will serve as the backbone of an effort by Public Works to rehabilitate roads and streets within the
next ten years and create a long-term maintenance plan to keep transportation functioning.
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
$140,000 is available in the 2024 Street Improvement Fund for this work.
 

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council award the contract for professional engineering services for CDOT Roadway
Funding and City Transportation Engineering to Jones & DeMille Engineering, Inc., due to its more qualified
proposal and higher evaluated average score, and authorize City Manager Drew Sanders to negotiate and sign the
contract.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be: I make the motion that City Council award the
CDOT Roadway Funding and City Transportation Engineering Contract to Jones & DeMille Engineering, Inc.,
at its proposal price of $139,868.00, and authorize City Manager Drew Sanders to negotiate and sign the contract.

AttachmentsAttachments
RFP Evaluation by City Staff













CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Brian PeckinsBrian Peckins 

Director of Public Works 
110 West Progress Circle 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
bpeckins@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 
Date:Date:
 

July 9, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project Bid Award2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project Bid Award
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
Public Works has been working on a strategy to replace and repair failing roadways in the City. As part of that
strategy, roadways will be reconditioned or replaced with treatments appropriate for the expected remaining
service life of that road. Consideration is also given to the speed and volume of each roadway to ensure that a
cost-effective solution is provided. As part of this plan, the northern part of Empire Street, from Hwy 145 west to
Mildred Road, was improved with a mill and fill last year. The southern portion of Empire Street, due to aging
waterlines beneath, will be reconditioned with a surface treatment. This same treatment will be applied to other
roadways that are good candidates to receive this type of resurfacing.

City staff prepared bid documents for chip sealing, friction sealing, and roadway striping for primary roadways
within the City. The project was advertised on BidNet, in the Cortez Journal, and on the City's website. Over 400
potential vendors saw the listing, of which 14 downloaded bid documents and two vendors picked up hard
copies from the Public Works Department. One partial bid was received for the friction seal portion of the project.
The entire project was budgeted for $663,000.00. The engineer's estimate for the friction seal portion was
$393,150.00.  The bid received from Specialty Applicators LLC for the friction seal portion was $300,855.00.
 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
Empire, Seventh, Sligo, Cactus, and Chestnut Streets are among the more traveled roads according to a traffic
analysis performed by City engineering staff. These roads are also among the more deteriorated according to
roadway condition data collected by Public Works street crews and engineering staff. Based on the amount of
travel and existing condition of the roads, the City Engineer recommends applying friction seal to portions of
these roadways to maintain and improve their current serviceability.
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
There are monies available in the 2024 Street Improvement Fund to perform this work.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
The bid received was provided by the same contractor typically used by Montezuma County to perform this type
of work. Since this contractor will already be in the area, it is able to provide a competitive price despite the lack
of competing bids. At this time of year, advertisements for asphalt resurfacing work will likely not get a better
response, if any at all.  Therefore, staff recommends that Council accept the bid and award the contract for friction
seal portion of this project to Specialty Applicators LLC at its bid price of $300,855.00.

MOTIONMOTION



If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be: I move that the City of Cortez accept the bid
and award the contract for 2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project to Specialty Applicators LLC at its bid price of
$300,855.00, and authorize City Manager to negotiate and sign the contract.

AttachmentsAttachments
Bid from Speciality Applicators













CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Vern KnucklesVern Knuckles 

Chief of Police 
608 N. Park Street 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
vknuckles@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Lori Millich, Administrative Secretary/Police

Date:Date:
 

06/26/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Cortez Police Department MDT (Mobile Data Terminal) ProjectCortez Police Department MDT (Mobile Data Terminal) Project
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
In March 2023, the Cortez Police Department applied for and received the Edward Byrne Memorial Assistance
Grant (JAG) in the amount of $234,990.00 to purchase and install 34 MDTs in the Police Departments fleet, to
include eForceD Silent Dispatch software for all users and AT&T data cards for internet connectivity for all users.
The City of Cortez put out a Request for Proposal and received three responses. Two were accepted and one was
rejected due to an incomplete submission. The three vendors and their bids are:

TKK Electronics from Milwaukee, Wisconsin for $209,223.07

MHQ West of Albuquerque, New Mexico for $212,521.54

Southern Computer Warehouse, Inc. from Marietta, Georgia for $152,470.53 (not accepted - incomplete
submission).

The City of Cortez assembled a panel of four city employees to review the bids and select a preferred vendor. The
panel selected MHQ West of New Mexico for the following reasons. 

Both vendors will travel to Cortez to install the MDTs. However, TKK Electronics uses a third party for installing
while MHQ installs the MDTs themselves.  MHQ will travel to Cortez to provide warranty work, while it was not
specifically stated how TKK would perform their warranty work.  MHQ is the vendor currently installing the
emergency equipment in our 2024 police vehicles. Using MHQ provides consistency with one installer.

City staff has personally seen the work MHQ does installing emergency equipment and MDTs, and it is quality
work. City staff is unsure of the quality of work that the TKK Electronics third party contractor does as we have
not seen it.
Although MHQs bid is higher than TKKs bid, the panel members felt strongly that MHQ should be
recommended as the preferred vendor for the above-mentioned reasons.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
Despite the increasing use of digital technology and other tools by society, the Cortez Police Department lacks the
essential ability to capitalize on this abundant technology in its day-to-day duties. Mobile Data Terminals (MDTs)
would provide this technology to officers in their vehicles which is crucial for keeping up with industry standards
and effective law enforcement in our community.
 
Serving a rural city of approximately 9,000 residents and handling calls for service exceeding 25,000 annually,
the department faces significant challenges. The rise in digital crime over the past two decades necessitates quick



access to and analysis of information, which MDTs facilitate. These terminals enable real-time intelligence sharing,
access to databases like CCIC and NCIC in the field, and on-the-spot suspect assessment, improving crime
prevention and response.

Although the department has adopted various technologies, including in-field fingerprint scanners, GPS apps,
body cameras, and records management systems, the absence of MDTs hampers its effectiveness. MDTs unify
these tools, enhancing communication, securing sensitive information, and streamlining data analysis.

MDTs will improve intervention tactics, safety, accountability, and data management, ultimately keeping officers
in the field effective and efficient.
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Fiscal impacts are minimal starting in year two.
The costs to purchase and install the MDTs, software, and data cards are all covered in the $234,990.00 grant
amount. There is no funding match required by the City. However, eForce Silent Dispatch licenses for all users
will need to be funded through budget allocations starting year 2 (2025), and AT&T data cards will need to be
funded through budget allocation starting year 2 (2025.) 
Costs for eForce Silent Dispatch in Year 2 = $2,994.75. Years 3+ will be based on year 2 fees plus 3% annually.
Costs for AT&T Data Cards in Year 2+ = $15,014.40 annually.
 

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council accept the bid from MHQ West of Albuquerque, New Mexico, and authorize the
expenditure of $234,990.00 of City funds to purchase and install 34 MDTs, eForce Silent Dispatch software for
each user, and AT&T data cards of each user; to be reimbursed by the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program (JAG) 2022-DJ-23-01-23-1 / Cortez MDT Project grant award.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be: 
I move that Council accept the bid from MHQ West of Albuquerque, New Mexico, and authorize the expenditure
of $234,990.00 of City funds to purchase and install 34 MDTs, eForce Silent Dispatch software for each user,
and AT&T data cards of each user; to be reimbursed by the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
Program (JAG) 2022-DJ-23-01-23-1 / Cortez MDT Project grant award.

AttachmentsAttachments
FirstNet
eForce
TKK
MHQ
Grant























































































































































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rachael MarchbanksRachael Marchbanks 

Community/Economic Development Director 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Cheryl Lindquist, Permit Technician/Deputy City Clerk

Date:Date:
 

7/09/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Authorization to accept the proposal of Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants,Authorization to accept the proposal of Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants,
Inc. for a Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter and Geer Natural AreasInc. for a Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
Proposals to complete the archaeological survey were received from:

1. Colliers Engineering & Design, Englewood, CO: $10,898
2. Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc., Cortez, CO: $12,941

Both proposals were submitted by reputable Colorado companies with highly qualified archaeologists and historic
preservation specialists. Although Colliers Engineering & Design (Colliers) submitted a proposal for $2,043 less
than Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. (Woods Canyon), Colliers' proposal was not as
comprehensive as the proposal submitted by Woods Canyon. The RFP requested applicants to include three (3)
client references of similar services provided. Colliers supplied 3 references, but the scope of work on the
references' projects were unclear or dissimilar from the work proposed on Carpenter/Geer. Colliers also did not
include the requested timeline or schedule of work plan and the map of the proposed project includes privately
owned parcels outside the Carpenter/Geer Natural Area, and does not reference any of the previous historic
surveys conducted through the City of Cortez. Alternatively, Woods Canyon is a local company, based in Cortez,
Colorado and has extensive knowledge of the Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas. Woods Canyon completed the
preliminary archaeological survey of the area in 1993, has worked on multiple grants and projects since and has
proven to be a reliable and timely partner. The proposal is still within the fiscal limits of the grant. The higher cost
proposed by Woods Canyon is from increased work hours given to the project. Colliers proposed a total of 110
hours towards the completion of the Class III Cultural Resource Survey (see attached budget), Woods Canyon
proposed 110 hours in the field and an additional 135 hours of other tasks (see Page 4 of Woods Canyon's
proposal).
 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
In 2010, the National Park Service designated the City of Cortez as a CLG (Certified Local Government).  This
means the City is eligible to apply for CLG grants from the Colorado Historical Society. 

In November of 2023, City Council approved Resolution No. 28, Series 2023, granting authorization for the
City to apply for a $12,000 grant from History Colorado to conduct an archaeological survey of the Carpenter
and Geer Natural Areas which are owned by the City. A preliminary archaeological survey was conducted in
1993 when the land for the Carpenter Natural Area was donated to the City. This survey identified a few small
prehistoric sites and a historic dump, which may be associated with the Civilian Conservation Corps camp that
was located nearby in the 1930's.  No archaeological survey has been conducted at the Geer Natural Area. On
April 19, 2024, a grant for the total of $12,941 was awarded to the City to inventory these two natural areas for



archaeological sites. No matching funds are required. 
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
The grant will provide 100% of the cost of the project.
 

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that council accept the proposal from Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc., and
authorize the City Manager to negotiate and sign a contract for the completion of the Class III Cultural Resource
Survey of Carpenter & Geer Natural Areas.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that Council accept the proposal from Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc., in the amount of
$12,491.00, and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and sign a contract with this firm for the completion of a
Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter & Geer Natural Areas.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report
Woods Canyon Proposal
Colliers Proposal
Colliers Budget



Memorandum

To: CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL

From: HELEN WEST, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST

Date: 07/09/2024

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT WOODS CANYON ARCHAEOLOGICAL CONSULTANTS, INC.
PROPOSAL FOR CLASS III CULTURAL RESOURCE SURVEY OF CARPENTER & GEER NATURAL
AREAS.

BACKGROUND

In 2010, the National Park Service designated the City of Cortez as a CLG (Certified Local Government).
This means the City is eligible to apply for CLG grants from the Colorado Historical Society.

In November of 2023, City Council approved Resolution No. 28, Series 2023, granting authorization for
the City to apply for a $12,000 grant from History Colorado to conduct an archaeological survey of the
Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas which are owned by the City. A preliminary archaeological survey was
conducted in 1993 when the land for the Carpenter Natural Area was donated to the City. This survey
identified a few small prehistoric sites and historic dump, which may be associated with the Civilian
Conservation Corps camp that was located nearby in the 1930’s.  No archaeological survey has been
conducted at the Geer Natural Area. On April 19, 2024 a grant for the total of $12,941 was awarded to
the City to inventory these two natural areas for archaeological sites, no matching funds are required.

DISCUSSION

Proposals to complete the archaeological survey were received from:

1. Colliers Engineering & Design Englewood, CO $10,898
2. Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. Cortez, CO $12,941

Both proposals were submitted by reputable Colorado companies with highly qualified archaeologists
and historic preservation specialist. Although Colliers Engineering & Design (Colliers) submitted a
proposal for $2,043 less than Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc. (Woods Canyon), Colliers
proposal was not as comprehensive as the proposal submitted by Woods Canyon. The RFP requested
applicants to include three (3) client references of similar services provided, Colliers supplied this but
the scope of work on the reference’s projects were unclear or dissimilar from the work proposed on
Carpenter/Geer. Colliers also did not include the requested timeline or schedule of work plan and the
map of the proposed project includes privately owned parcels outside the Carpenter/Geer Natural Area,

City of Cortez
123 Roger Smith Ave.
Cortez, Co.  81321

Rachael Marchbanks
Community and Economic

Development Director
123 Roger Smith Ave.

Cortez, CO 81321
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov



and do not reference any of the previous historic surveys conducted through the City of Cortez.
Alternatively, Woods Canyon is a local company, based in Cortez, Colorado and has extensive knowledge
of the Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas. Woods Canyon completed the preliminary archaeological
survey of the area in 1993, has worked on multiple grants and projects since and has proven to be a
reliable and timely partner. The proposal is still within the fiscal limits of the grant. The higher cost
proposed by Woods Canyon is from increased work hours given to the project. Colliers proposed a total
of 110 hours towards the completion of the Class III Cultural Resource Survey (see attached budget),
Woods Canyon proposed 110 hours in the field and an additional 135 hours of other tasks (see Page 4 of
Woods Canyon’s proposal).

FISCAL IMPACT

The grant will provide 100% of the cost of the project.  In addition, the Historic Preservation Board and
other locals will provide additional, pro-bono volunteer time.  There will be little to no cost for the City of
Cortez (some Grants and C&ED staff time).

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the advice from the City of Cortez Historic Preservation Board, the Community & Economic
Development Department and City Grants Administrator recommends Council approve Woods Canyon
Archaeological Consultants, Inc. proposal, to enter into a contract for the completion of the Class III
Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter & Geer Natural Areas.

MOTION

If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:

I move that Council accept the proposal from Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc., in the
amount of $12,491.00 and that the City enter into a contract with them for the completion of a Class III
Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter & Geer Natural Areas.



































































































































































































































































                 Task Hours Rate Total
1.  Background Research/Coordination

16 $90.46 $1,447.36

2. Intensive Class III Cultural Resources Survey
48 $90.46 $4,342.08

3. Site Forms and Survey Report
32 $90.46 $2,894.72

4. Educational Outreach
14 $90.46 $1,266.44

     TOTAL DIRECT LABOR $9,950.60

Overhead Costs
Hotel $192.00
Equipment $0.00
Vehicle Mileage $0.00
Tolls 960 miles @ 0.59 per mile $566.40
Per diem $183.00

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS (OVERHEAD AND LABOR)

$10,892.00

                                                                                                             3 days @ $61 per day 

COST PROPOSAL

Class III Cultural Resource Survey of Carpenter and Geer Natural Areas in Cortez, Colorado
Assuming 188-acre total Survey area

                                                                                                                 2 nights (dual occupancy) @ $96 per night

Field Director, Principal Investigator

Field Director, Historic Architect, Principal Investigator

Field Director, Historic Architect, Principal Investigator

Field Director, Crew Chief



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Patrick ColemanPatrick Coleman 

City Attorney 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
pcoleman@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

PATRICK COLEMAN, CITY ATTORNEY

Date:Date:
 

07/02/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Resolution No. 14, Series 2024Resolution No. 14, Series 2024
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
Colorado House Bill 24-1175, which has been codified as C.R.S. § 29-4-1201, et seq., gives Colorado local
governments certain rights of first refusal and first offer in connection with the sale of certain types of affordable
housing properties by private sellers.  The statute allows local governments to waive their rights of first refusal and
first offer if they do not want to become purchasers or sellers of affordable housing.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
When City Staff briefed the Council about a new (Colorado House Bill 24-1175, which has been codified as
C.R.S. § 29-4-1201, et seq.) that requires sellers of qualifying affordable housing units to notify local
governments of their intent to sell the housing units, and gives the local governments the right of first refusal and
first offer, Council directed City Staff to prepare a resolution that Council could consider that would waive the
City's right of first refusal and first offer.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Not analyzed.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve Resolution No. 14, Series 2024, a resolution Waiving the Right of the
City of Cortez, Colorado to First Refusal and First Offer in Connection with the Sale of Affordable Housing.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council approve Resolution No. 14, Series 2024, a resolution Waiving the Right of the City of
Cortez, Colorado to First Refusal and First Offer in Connection with the Sale of Affordable Housing.

AttachmentsAttachments
Resolution No. 14, Series 2024



CITY OF CORTEZ
RESOLUTION NO. 14, SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION WAIVING THE RIGHT OF THE CITY OF CORTEZ, COLORADO
TO FIRST REFUSAL AND FIRST OFFER IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

WHEREAS, Colorado House Bill 24-1175, which has been codified as C.R.S. § 29-4-
1201, et seq., (the “House Bill”) gives Colorado local governments certain rights of first refusal
and first offer in connection with sale of certain types of residential real properties that are defined
as a “Qualifying Property” pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-4-1202(1) or C.R.S. § 29-4-1203(1); and

WHEREAS, the intent of the House Bill is to allow local governments an opportunity to
purchase from private owners qualifying multifamily rental properties that were initially
constructed or converted into affordable housing by the imposition of restrictive covenants or other
recorded agreements to ensure affordability; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-4-1202(2)(g)(I), a local government has the right to
waive its right of first refusal, and pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-4-1203(2)(e)(I), a local government has
the right to waive its right of first offer provided by the House Bill; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cortez desires to exercise its right to waive its
right of first refusal and its right of first offer.

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL:

THAT, the City Council supports efforts by the private sector and the marketplace to help
increase the supply of affordable housing in Cortez; and

THAT, the City Council determines that it is not appropriate for the City of Cortez to be a
party to transactions that result in the City purchasing, owning, managing or leasing affordable
housing; and

THAT, the City hereby waives its right of first refusal pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-4-
1202(2)(g)(I), and waives its right of first offer pursuant to C.R.S. § 29-4-1203(2)(e)(I).

MOVED, SECONDED, AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF JULY, 2024.

{Signatures on following page}



CITY OF CORTEZ

___________________________________
Rachel B. Medina, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Linda Smith, City Clerk


	Agenda
	2.a. Mintues for June 25, 2024
	       ATT_Worksession Minutes for June 25, 2024
	       ATT_Agenda Minutes for June 25, 2024
	2.b. Expenditure List
	       ATT_Expenditure List
	070524 Expenditure List
	062824 Expenditure List.pdf
	062824 Expenditure List


	2.c. Renewal- Speedway #9499
	       ATT_Renewal- Speedway _9499
	2.d. Renewal- Liquid Assets
	       ATT_Renewal- Liquid Assets
	2.e. Renewal- La Casita
	       ATT_Renewal- La Casita
	5.a. Resolution No. 10, Series 2024
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Resolution No. 10, Series 2024
	       ATT_Planning and Zoning Resolution No. 4, Series 2024
	       ATT_Drainage report
	1240 lebanon 2 Drainage report
	1240 lebanon Drainage report

	       ATT_Documentation
	tevault 2
	tevault

	7.a. Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Resolution No. 12, Series 2024
	       ATT_Plat and Documents
	W Reed AMENDED Plat
	Reed appl docs

	7.b. Resolution No.13, Series 2024
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Resolution No. 13, Series 2024
	       ATT_Site Plan
	       ATT_Documentation
	garcia
	Garcia Documents 1
	garcia
	garcia 1


	7.c. CDOT Aeronautics- Discretionary Grant Award- Resolution
	       ATT_CDOT Grant Award Resolution
	7.d. CDOT Roadway Funding and City Transportation Engineering
	       ATT_RFP Evaluation by City Staff
	7.e. Bid Results - 2024 Chip and Friction Seal Project
	       ATT_Bid from Speciality Applicators
	7.f. MDT Project
	       ATT_FirstNet
	       ATT_eForce
	       ATT_TKK
	       ATT_MHQ
	       ATT_Grant
	7.g. Authorization to Contract with Woods Canyon Archaeological Consultants, Inc.
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Woods Canyon Proposal
	       ATT_Colliers Proposal
	       ATT_Colliers Budget
	7.h. Resolution No.14, Series 2024
	       ATT_Resolution No. 14, Series 2024

